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 ABOUT THIS REPORT  
 

The KZN Growth Fund Trust (KGFT – herein also referred to as “the Trust”) is pleased to present its second 

integrated report covering the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016. The report aims to give a comprehensive 

account of KGFT’s strategic mandate, operational and financial performance, its stakeholders, governance, 

material issues, risks and opportunities and how these influenced our strategic objectives and our quest to 

create sustainable value in the period under review and beyond.  

 

In preparing the report, management considered the guidelines on integrated reporting as provided by the 

International Integrated Reporting Committee (IIRC) as well as the King Report on Corporate Governance for 

South Africa, 2009 (King III).   

 

ENHANCEMENTS TO THE 2015/16 REPORT 

As part of our integrated reporting journey, we are constantly improving the quality of the information we 

provide, giving stakeholders a balanced and transparent account of KGFT’s business. A benchmarking exercise 

was undertaken against the 2014/15 Integrated Report by an external service provider in order to provide 

direction on areas that can be improved upon in this report. In this regard, KGFT has sought to clearly disclose 

material issues in the report and consideration has been given to connecting material issues, risks, strategic 

objectives, data and stakeholder issues.   

 

REPORTING PRINCIPLES AND ASSURANCE  

KGFT’s Annual Financial Statements (AFS) have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the principles of the Public Finance Management Act, No. 1 of 1999 (PFMA) as it 

relates to annual financial statements. There have been no restatements of financial information in respect of 

prior periods. KGFT receives external assurance from the Auditor-General South Africa (“AGSA”), on the fair 

representation of its annual financial statements. The AGSA also provides assurance in respect of KGFT’s 

achievement of annual performance targets as set out in the Annual Performance Plan. KGFT will seek to obtain 

assurance on other non-financial matters as a part of its integrated reporting plan going forward.  

 

FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION  

Certain of the matters discussed in this report about KGFT’s future performance, including, without limitation, 

future financial performance, strategies, prospects, consequences and all other statements that are not purely 

historical, constitute “forward-looking statements”. Such forward-looking statements are subject to risks and 

uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated. Such statements are 

based on management's beliefs as well as assumptions made by and information currently available to 

management.  
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONTINUED) 
 

MATERIALITY 

The principle of materiality has been applied in determining the content and extent of disclosure in the 

Integrated Report. In identifying those matters which are material, a wide range of resources were consulted 

including KGFT’s corporate plan and strategy, the outcomes of engagements with stakeholders, reports 

submitted and produced for the Board of Trustees (“The Board”) and sub-committees, the key risks identified 

during the risk management process and various policies and regulations applicable to KGFT. 

 

APPROVAL BY THE BOARD 

This report was prepared by Executive Management under the supervision of the KGFT’s Board. 

 

I would like to thank the Board of the KGFT for all the input and guidance to the Management Team during the 

preparation of this report. Suffice to say that the Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring the integrity of the 

integrated report, supported by the Audit and Risk Committee and the KGFT management team.  The Board of 

KGFT have applied their collective mind to the preparation and presentation of the integrated report and 

believes that it addresses all material issues and fairly presents the performance of KGFT. KGFT has taken a 

phased approach to integrated reporting and therefore believes that by 2017/18 the report will be presented 

fully in accordance with the IIRC (International Integrated Reporting Council) Framework. 

 

Given the strides already made by the Trust in the period under review, the leadership of the Board and the 

diligence and hard work of the Executive Management team, I feel bullish about the socio-economic 

contribution that the Fund will make in the following year. 

 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Ms D Hlatshwayo 

Chairman 
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 MEC’S FOREWORD 
 

The KZN Growth Fund Trust (“the Fund”) was established in 2008 as one of our key strategic initiatives to foster 
empowerment and economic growth in the KwaZulu-Natal Province (KZN – herein also referred to as “the 
Province”). The main objective of the Fund is to finance medium to large projects that create jobs and accelerate 
the economic development of KZN whilst at the same time promoting Broad-Based Black Economic 
Empowerment (B-BBEE) and reducing inequality.  
 
On 1 April 2015, the Fund implemented its Evolution Strategy which was based on unencumbering the 
government’s funding and the introduction of the KZN Growth Fund Equity Fund. In its first year of implementing 
the Evolution Strategy, the Fund has made great progress towards its goal of building an institution that fully 
exploits the synergies of private capital and government capital. 
 
The significant improvement in the number of project approvals in the 2015/16 financial year is a testament of 
the fruits and benefits of the new strategy, which has seen the Fund playing a pivotal role in providing finance 
to private sector projects that create jobs and unlock economic potential. We believe that the mandate and 
strategies of the Fund reflect and encompass the current government policy priority objectives.  
 
In line with its strategy of growing its asset base and increasing its positive impact on job creation, B-BBEE and 
reducing inequality, the Fund commenced on an extensive fund raising programme during the past financial 
year. The aim has been to attract like-minded developmental financial institutions and pension funds to partner 
with the Fund in a private equity fund structure in order to assist the Fund to make a greater impact in the 
growth and economic development of the Province and South Africa in general. 
 
The existence of the Fund has never been as important for the Province as it is now to give impetus to the 
government’s response to the challenging macro-economic environment. 
 
I would like to thank the Chairman of the Board, and their respective fellow Trustees and independent 
committee members for strategically guiding the Fund to a higher level of growth and performance in the last 
year. We are confident that the Executives and staff of the entity have the requisite expertise in unlocking the 
significant economic development potential in the Province through investments in viable private sector 
projects.  
 
The Department will continue to support and guide the Fund in all its future business undertakings to ensure its 
success. 
 
I would like to express my gratitude to the private investors for partnering with the KZN government in the space 
of project finance and equity funding. This is testimony that in order for us to unlock the full economic potential 
of our beautiful country, the public and private sector will have to join hands and work together. 
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MEC’S FOREWORD (CONTINUED) 
 

I look forward to working together with all the stakeholders and partners to transform the Province into a 

sustainable and liveable province.  

 
 

 

Yours faithfully, 

 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Mr. Sihle Zikala, MPP 

MEC for Economic Development, Tourism & Environmental Affairs 
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 CHAIRMAN' REPORT 
 

It is indeed an honour for me to present this report for the 2015/16 financial 

year on behalf of the Board.  The Fund has been in existence for the past 8 

years. In many respects the year 2015/16 has been one of transition and 

change as it was the first year of fully implementing the Evolution Strategy, 

which has chartered the path for the Fund to pursue a funding model that 

ensures sustainability and that allows the Fund to introduce new products 

and expand its business to achieve its mandate of job creation and    MS DUDU HLATSHWAYO 

development of the KZN economy. But, we are very much at the                           CHAIRMAN: KZN GROWTH FUND TRUST     

beginning of a new and exciting journey.                                      

 

HISTORICAL CONTEXT 

The Evolution Strategy which was aimed at growing the assets under management under a funding model that 

furthers the achievement of government policies, priorities and objectives, commenced with the Fund prepaying 

its Lenders on 31 March 2015. This resulted in the Fund being fully unencumbered for the first time in its history. 

The Fund was historically established as a Debt Fund only. As from the 1st of April 2015, the Fund introduced an 

Equity Fund to be operated alongside the Debt Fund. The establishment of the Equity Fund was necessitated by 

our observation where a number of projects would have approvals for debt funding from various financial 

institutions but could not proceed owing to shortage of equity financing. The Fund is now in a position to provide 

capital to qualifying projects, be it debt or equity. 

    

SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS          

The South African economy continues to perform below its potential. However, we are optimistic. The prevailing 

macro-economic conditions, characterised by the weakening rand, widening current account deficit, high 

unemployment rate and capital outflows continue to pose significant challenges to the South African economy.   

 

South Africa’s economy grew by 1.3% in 2015, down from 1.5% in 2014 and 2.2% in 2013, according to 

preliminary estimates of real gross domestic product (GDP) published by Stats SA. Overall economic growth in 

2015 was characterised by two of the main industry groups shrinking in size, while the other eight experienced 

some growth. 

 

The Fund’s core sectors were also affected adversely, with the main contributor to the country’s slowdown in 

2015 being agriculture. Severe drought conditions saw the industry contracting by 8.4%, the largest annual fall 

in agriculture production since 1995.The electricity, gas and water supply industry also shrank in size, contracting 

by 1.0%. Growth in manufacturing was almost flat in 2015, with the industry expanding marginally by 0.1%. 

 

The finance industry expanded by 2.8%. As this is the largest industry, comprising 21% of the entire economy, 

its increase in activity was the main positive contributor to the 1.3% annual rise in GDP. 
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CHAIRMAN' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
 

That said, we believe that the KZN Growth Fund has a huge role to play as a catalyst funder for viable and 

sustainable projects in the Province. I am confident that the developing environment backed by the impact of 

the restructure of the Fund will contribute to the successful implementation of the strategies and effective 

operations of the KGFT.  

 

GOVERNANCE 

The Fund monitors and reports on compliance as set out in the King III report and PFMA and continues to remain 

fully committed to transparent and disciplined governance processes. In addition, our risk management 

processes remain robust throughout the Fund and integrate the functions of risk, internal audit and legal and 

compliance. As a provider of capital, the Fund seeks to influence and ensure that the Fund’s investee companies 

also adhere to good corporate governance. 

 

FUTURE STRATEGY  

Our brand is going from strength to strength and our efficiencies continue to improve, which is evidenced by 

the quality of the deal flow pipeline and referrals being attracted by the Fund. 

 

The coming year will be another year of transition and growth as the Fund continues with the change in its 

Funding Model, the deliverance of its core mandate and, more generally, its drive to ensure that it is world-class 

in all that it does. Those ambitions have my whole-hearted support, and are integral to the institution’s mission 

to promote the good of the people of the Province and South Africa at large. 

 

APPRECIATION           

I would like to thank the MEC: EDTEA for entrusting the Board with the responsibility of leading the Fund at this 

important juncture in its lifecycle. I would also like to take the opportunity of thanking Mr. Michael Mabuyakulu 

for his support and leadership during his service as MEC: EDTEA. The Board also wishes to extend its warm 

welcome to MEC, Mr. Shihle Zikala and working together in furthering the growth trajectory of the Fund in 

delivering against its mandate. 

 

It is a real privilege to be able to serve the Province and be given a platform through which to contribute towards 

its economic development. I would also like to thank the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and his team, who have 

put in a tremendous amount of effort into ensuring the speedy implementation of the evolution strategy during 

2015/16.  Lastly, I would like to thank my fellow Board members for accepting the huge responsibility and 

challenge that lies before the Board in ensuring that the Fund realises its mission “To provide competitive and 

innovative financing solutions to private sector investments that propel socio-economic growth for a better 

future.”  

 

                                                               

Ms D Hlatshwayo  

Chairman  
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 REPORT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
 

OPERATIONS AND PERFORMANCE 

The CEO is pleased to report that 2015/16 financial year was a successful year 

in implementing the Evolution Strategy from 1 April 2015. The positive 

financial results are testaments to the entity’s unwavering commitments in 

meeting its key strategic goals of creating sustainable economic 

development, job creation, B-BBEE and reducing inequality in KZN as well as 

alignment to the KZN 2012 -2030 Provincial Growth and Development Plan (PGDP). MR SIDDIQ ADAM 
                                                       CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER: KZN GROWTH FUND TRUST                        

           

The successful performance achieved by the Fund is commendable considering that the financial year to 31 

March 2016 was characterised by relative weakness in global emerging markets and most notably by US Dollar 

strength against a basket of emerging and developed world currencies.  

 

During the course of 2015/16, a number of vacancies in key positions were filled during the year. These related 

to the new product offering, equity financing. Rigorous training plan was also implemented to ensure that skills 

within the entity support the implementation of the evolution strategy.  

 

STRATEGY 

In order to address the challenges arising from the limited product offering, the post disbursement challenges 

and the limitations arising from the security structure within the previous funding model, a an en-commandite 

partnership model was considered the preferred model for the Trust.  

 

In terms of the approved Evolution Strategy of the Trust, the Trust is in the process of setting up an en-

commandite (or limited liability) partnerships to manage future third party funds. As part of this process, the 

lenders in the previous funding model have been prepaid. The Trust is now engaging with potential investors 

under a new partnership agreement. The adoption of the partnership model will enable the Trust to manage 

both its own capital together with other third party investors in Debt, Equity and Guarantee Funds. By providing 

equity, projects that have been hindered by the Trust to be funded due to lack of equity will now benefit as 

funding transactions will be completed. The evolution strategy of the Trust is aimed at growing the KGFT asset 

base, enlarging its product offering and improving its positive impact on job creation, B-BBEE and reducing 

inequality. 

 

The setup of the first en-commandite partnership is currently in progress and it is expected to be implemented 

during the 2016/17 financial year depending on the outcome of the investor’s relevant approval processes and 

successful contract negotiation with the KGFT. 
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REPORT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CONTINUED) 
    

APPRECIATION      

The CEO would like to express his gratitude to the Chairman as well as all the Trustees of the Board and 

independent Committee Members for their unwavering support and strategic guidance. The CEO acknowledges 

the Head of Department for EDTEA; Mr Golding and Head of Entity Oversight, Ms Mapisa for their support during 

the year. 

 

Our clients and co-funding partners deserve a word of gratitude for having entrusted their funding needs with 

us.  

     

Last but not least, the CEO acknowledges all his staff who has contributed tremendously to the Trust’s 

development and this effort does not go unnoticed. As the Trust moves into the new era, the CEO firmly believes 

that the entity’s staff will realise the benefits of all their hard work and tireless effort. 

         
___________________________        

Mr S Adam 

Chief Executive Officer  
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 ORGANIZATIONAL PROFILE 
 

The Trust was set up in 2008 as an initiative of the KZN Government’s Department of Economic Development, 

Tourism and Environmental Affairs (EDTEA) to administer the KZN Growth Fund (“KGF Debt Fund 1”). The Fund 

was set up as a 15 year R1,087.5bn closed debt fund with a commitment period of 6 years, structured as a unique 

public-private partnership between the EDTEA (R362,5m), Standard Bank of South Africa (SBSA – R200m), 

Infrastructure Finance Corporation (INCA – R300m) and the Development Bank of Southern Africa (DBSA – 

R225m). The commitment period ended in August 2015. KGF Debt Fund 1, which became operational in 2009, 

financed medium to large scale sustainable private sector projects throughout the Province. The fund size 

reduced to R787.5m due to the exit of INCA from the fund in November 2013 because of a change in its business 

model. This initiative was a first in South Africa, aimed at creating sustainable economic development, job 

creation, B-BBEE and reducing inequality in KZN.  
 

The KGF Debt Fund 1 was a closed debt fund and in order to give effect to new funds and products (restricted 

under KGF Debt Fund 1), the Trust unencumbered its capital from the existing security in the KGF Debt Fund 1 

by prepayment of the existing exposures and cancellation of all debt facilities on 31 March 2015. The Trust now 

caters for both a debt and an equity fund and is able to bring on board additional investors to participate in both 

funds.   

 

The Debt Fund finances projects ranging from a minimum of R30m and may consider funding up to R200m in 

size. Projects requiring amounts over the upper limit are co-funded with other financial institutions. The Equity 

Fund invests in projects ranging from a minimum of R20m and may consider investments up to R100m. The 

Funds focus on strategic infrastructure and economic sectors such as:  

 

 Transport and logistics; 

 Manufacturing; 

 Telecommunications; 

 Power and Energy; 

 Health and Education Infrastructure; 

 Agro-processing; 

 Mining and mineral beneficiation; 

 Tourism; and  

 Any other sector which may promote the objectives of the Fund, provided it satisfies the investment 

policy of the Fund. 

 

The Fund was established to unlock the provinces economic potential through the use of flexible developmental 

finance, taking risk where traditional financial institutions are failing the funding requirements of viable business 

projects.   
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ORGANIZATIONAL PROFILE (CONTINUED) 
 

Vision 

To be KZN’s leading Development Financier and Impact Investor  

 

Mission 

To provide competitive and innovative financing solutions to private sector investments that propel socio-

economic growth for a better future.  

 

Mandate 

To support sustainable growth by financing private sector projects that drive economic success, stimulate job 

creation, promote broad based black economic empowerment (B-BBEE) and reduce inequality. 

 

Values 

The Trust’s values are: 

 Respect; 

 Accountability; 

 Integrity; 

 Stewardship; and 

 Enterprising. 

 

“RAISE” 

 

STRATEGIC GOALS 

The Trust’s strategic goals are as follows: 

 To manage the Trust’s resources efficiently and effectively so as to remain financially sustainable; and 

 To be a catalyst investor by utilising government capital to leverage off private / institutional sector 

funding and to maximise the development impact. 

 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 

The strategic objectives of the Trust are: 

 To maintain sound corporate governance and an unqualified audit opinion; 

 To utilise government capital to leverage off institutional/private investor’s capital so as to grow the 

assets under management; 

 To identify and finance viable private sector projects which demonstrate beneficial, measurable socio 

economic impact whilst being environmentally sustainable and maximises the developmental impact of 

the Trust’s investments; and 

 To remain financially sustainable by fully committing available funds under management and ensuring 

appropriate post investment management. 



   
 

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 14 

 
 

 

ORGANIZATIONAL PROFILE (CONTINUED) 
 

To achieve the strategic objectives of the Fund, the Trust has adopted the following strategies: 

 To manage funds that can offer competitive financing products to attract private participation;   

 To build long term relationships with other Development Finance Institutions (DFIs) and lending 

institutions to cross-refer and co-finance projects and build on the public private partnership (PPP) 

model;  

 To further implement the comprehensive marketing strategy; 

 To adequately resource and retain the necessary human capital and skills  in the Trust; and 

 To implement and maintain sound policies, procedures, and systems of internal controls to ensure good 

corporate governance. 

 

By implementing the above strategies, the Trust will be able to achieve its strategic objectives, hence 

establishing a successful track record and a reputation for effective delivery. The strategy of the Trust will be 

driven by a single minded goal of developmental finance and growing the assets under management.  
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 OUR LEADERSHIP 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

    

Ms Dudu Hlatshwayo (52) 

Chairman of the Board 

 

Independent Trustee as from 

28/01/2014 

 

Academic qualifications 

BSocSc (Hons), MBA 

Other Directorships 

 Public Investment Corporation 

 Lanseria International Airport 

 Lanseria Holdings 

 Land Bank 

Mr Helge Switala (65) 

Deputy Chairman 

 

Independent Trustee as from 

28/01/2014 

 

Academic qualifications 

BSc (Engineering) (Hon); B 

Admin; HonBSc (Operations 

Research) (cum Laude) 

Ms Delia Jay (43) 

Trustee 

 

Independent Trustee as from 

28/01/2014 

 

Academic qualifications 

BA LLB, MBA 

Other Directorships 

 Inkuma Project Finance 

Consulting 

 

Mr Imtiaz Vally (48) 

Trustee  

 

Independent Trustee as from 

28/01/2014 

 

Academic qualifications 

Master of Accountancy, 

Chartered Accountant(SA) 

Other Directorships 

 Umgeni Water Services 

 Nepstar Investments 

 Durban Marine Theme 

Park 

   

Ms Phumzile Langeni (42) 

Trustee 

Independent Trustee as from 28/01/2014 

 

BCom (Accounting), BCom (Hons)(Bus Mgt) 

Other Directorships 

 Massmart Holdings 

 Imperial Holdings 

 Metrofile Holdings 

 Astrapak 

 MBD Credit Solutions Holdings 

 SA Taxi Finance Holdings 

 Primedia 

 Mineworkers Investment Company 

 Transaction Capital (Pty) Ltd 

 Redefine Properties 

Ms Zodwa Mbele (45) 

Trustee * 

Independent Trustee as from 03/06/2014 

 

Chartered Accountant (SA) 

Other Directorships 

 GZN Consulting 

 Vergenoeg Mining Company 

 Amandlendoda Trading Enterprise 

 Isu-Women Investment Network 

 Sentech 

 Tornusil Construction 

 Stanlib Infrastructure Fund  

 Unokhethwako Development Trust 

*Resigned 31 March 2016 

 

 
 

Mr Siddiq Adam (45) 

Chief Executive Officer and 

Trustee 

Executive Trustee as from 

28/01/2014 

 

BCom (Hons) (Economics); MSc 

(Applied Economics) (cum laude) 

Other Directorships 

 Kwa-Zulu Natal Tourism 

Authority (trading as Tourism 

KZN) – Non-Executive 

 Kwadukuza Private Hospital  

 

 



   
 

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 16 

 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 

 
Mr Siddiq Adam 

Chief Executive Officer 

 

 
 

Mr Aubrey Shabane  Mr Ismail Abdoola 

Chief Investment Officer Chief Financial Officer 
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 GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Kwa Zulu-Natal 
Provincial 

Government 

Department of Economic 
Development, Tourism 

and Environmental Affairs 

KZN Growth Fund Trust 
Board of Trustees 

Investment 
Committee 

 

Audit & Risk 
Committee 

 
 

Human Resources & 
Remuneration 

Committee 

Chief Executive Officer 
 Strategy Implementation 
 Stakeholder Communication 
 Secretariat and Governance 
 Brand Awareness/Marketing 

 
 
 
 

Chief Investment Officer 
 

 Projects 
 Legal (Projects) 

Chief Risk Officer 
 

 Enterprise Risk 
 Credit Risk 
 Compliance 
 ESG 

 
 

Chief Financial Officer 
 

 Finance & admin 
 IT 
 Human Resources 
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 INVESTMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 

SOCIO-ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT 

Global economic growth slowed in 2015 led by weak industrial production as a result of subdued demand across 

major economies and other economic regions. In Sub-Saharan Africa, economic activity generally fell short of 

expectations, affected by the drop in oil prices, declines in other commodity prices, capital outflows, currency 

depreciations, tighter credit conditions and geopolitical and domestic strife in a few countries 

 

South Africa has been heavily influenced by these conditions, with industrial production falling, while agriculture 

was afflicted by the worst drought in years. Business confidence was depressed while domestic investment 

contracted on poor economic demand conditions. Consumer demand was anaemic due to higher interest rates 

and taxes, falling real incomes and rising unemployment, as well as high indebtedness and modest credit 

extension to the household sector.  

 

With limited fixed capital formation, unemployment will remain a challenge in South Africa. The effects of 

unemployment extend beyond financial depravation to include high social costs associated with crime and social 

cohesion which may ultimately hinder economic growth in the long term. 

 

Reflecting the subdued national growth, the pace of economic growth in KZN slowed showing a year-on-year 

downward trend in 2015. KZN is an important hub of industrial development in Sub-Saharan Africa due to its 

natural resources and well-developed infrastructure. Economic activities in the province are mainly 

concentrated around the port of Durban, Richards Bay and the capital city of the province, Pietermaritzburg. 

The Province is the second largest economy in the country, contributing an average of 16% to the country’s GDP 

according to Statistics South Africa.  

 

Going forward, the severe depreciation of the South African Rand (ZAR) against the US dollar (US$) is likely to 

have a significant impact on the domestic investment activities by corporate South Africa. Recent South African 

Reserve Bank (SARB) data for gross fixed capital formation reflects a decreasing pace in domestic investment 

expenditure which could partly be explained by the weak Rand and also by the weak international demand. 

Nonetheless, there is potential for significant investment activities spilling over from both national and the 

provincial government’s infrastructure programmes and growth initiatives. 

   

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE (“IC”) CONSTITUTION 

The constitution of the committee is outlined in the corporate governance section of this report. The members 

of this committee, who are drawn from diverse backgrounds including private equity, development and project 

finance, continue to make significant contribution towards building the capacity of the fund in discharging its 

mandate. Their invaluable contribution - characterised by supreme commitment and dedication - towards 

unlocking the development and economic potential of KZN is greatly appreciated.    
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INVESTMENT REPORT (CONTINUED) 
 

REVIEW OF THE 2015/16 FINANCIAL YEAR 

The year commenced with the expansion of the Fund’s product offering, to include equity as a financing 

instrument. The introduction of equity as part of the product offering followed observations that a number of 

projects in the Province required equity capital to unlock them. 

 

In spite of modest economic growth during the period under review, the Fund’s funding approvals amounted to 

R260.5m to projects in telecommunications (R100m), manufacturing (R42.5m) and healthcare (R118m).  These 

projects are expected to create a total of 702 jobs. 

 

Disbursements, an indicator of real investment in the economy amounted to R168m, was lower by 42% 

compared to the prior comparative period. This is partly attributed to delays in implementation of some of the 

approved projects and extended development periods for other projects. Notwithstanding the nature of certain 

projects that require extended development periods, the Fund aims to continue shortening the time between 

project origination and disbursements to ensure that funds flow into the economy as swiftly as possible to 

stimulate development impact.  Included in both approvals and disbursements is the Fund’s first equity 

investment in the amount of R48m. 

 

The projects in post-investment stage are closely monitored and managed in order to timeously address any 

signs of financial distress.  Notwithstanding these efforts, an event of default involving one of the portfolio 

companies was recorded during the fourth quarter of the year.  Consequently, an impairment in the amount of 

R19.2m has been raised in respect of the associated exposure. 

 

The investment activities for the year are summarised in the table below against prior year performance. 

    

Performance Indicator 2015/16 2014/15 

Total value of approved financing (R’m) 260.5 373.4 

Total value of disbursements (R’m) 168.0 290 

Total number of jobs expected to be created  557 1 410 

Impairments as a % of investment portfolio 4% 0% 

 

The Fund is confident that it has the ability to disburse available funds via the project pipeline that it has 

developed. At 31 March 2016, the Fund is appraising debt and equity deals of circa R620m and is reflected in 

project pipeline table below: 
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INVESTMENT REPORT (CONTINUED) 
 

REVIEW OF THE 2015/16 FINANCIAL YEAR (CONTINUED) 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Total Projects Disbursed and Committed 7 3,750            629               48                  7,617                   

    Healthcare 1 216                                  48                         457 

    Manufacturing 1                  200                  200                     -                       1,760 

    Telecommunication 2 3,145            210                                   -   4,801                   

    Transport & Logistics 1                    43                    43                     -                           152 

Total Portfolio Projects Disbursed 5 3,604            453               48                  7,170                   

    Manufacturing 1 56                                     43                     -                           147 

    Transport & Logistics 1 90                                     63                     -                           300 

    Healthcare                    70 

Total Committed Projects 2 146               176                                   -   447                       

Projects Under Appraisal 4 586               90                  118               325                       

    Manufacturing 2 353                                  40                    85                         221 

Total Projects in Final Appraisal 2 353               40                  85                  221                       

    Manufacturing 2 233               50                  33                  104                       

Total Projects in Initial Appraisal Stage 2 233                                  50                    33                         104 

    Education 1 130                                   -                      50                         150 

    Healthcare 3 924                                   -                    135                         775 

    Manufacturing 8 1,420                             240                  120                         770 

    Mining 1 60                                     25                     -                           127 

    Power & Energy 1 11,000                             -                      50                     1,100 

Total Investment Leads 14 13,534         265               355               2,922                   

Total Project Pipeline 25                  17,870         984               521               10,864                 

Sector 

Total 

Project 

Value (Rm)

Debt Fund 

(Rm)

Equity Fund 

(Rm)

Job 

Opportunities

No of 

Projects
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT        

 

In the year ahead, the IC is expecting growth in the value of economic stimulation through increased 

disbursements. The introduction of equity as a financing instrument is expected to unlock a number of 

commercially viable and high development impact projects in the Province.  

 

The IC is optimistic that the broad range of financing solutions, complemented by an in-depth understanding of 

the operating environment, will be useful in the coming year to spur economic growth, with far reaching 

development impact. 

 
_______________________________         

Mr H Switala          

Chairman: Investment Committee 
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 OPERATING ENVIRONMENT 
 

GLOBAL ECONOMY 

In 2015, global economic activity remained subdued and uneven.  Following three successive quarters of 

economic expansion, global output faltered notably in the fourth quarter of 2015 as both the advanced and 

emerging market economies recorded slower growth over the period.  In 2015 as a whole, output growth 

accelerated marginally in advanced economies but slowed markedly in emerging market and developing 

countries.  Growth in emerging market and developing economies—while still accounting for over 70 percent of 

global growth according to the International Monetary Fund (IMF)—declined for the fifth consecutive year.  

 

The IMF reports that the pace of growth almost halved in emerging-market economies, driven primarily by 

weaker economic conditions in China, India and Russia.  In advanced economies, economic activity slowed 

largely due to a sharp moderation in US economic growth and a contraction of economic activity in Japan.  

Against this background global growth, 2.5% in 2015, is projected by the IMF at 3.4% in 2016 and 3.6% in 2017. 

This global outlook is assumed to be influenced by three key transitions, namely the gradual slowdown and 

rebalancing of economic activity in China away from investment and manufacturing toward consumption and 

services, lower prices for energy and other commodities, and a gradual tightening in monetary policy in the 

United States as several other major advanced economies continue to ease monetary policy. 

 

Growth in advanced economies is projected by the IMF to rise to 2.1% in 2016, and hold steady in 2017 

influenced by continued recovery in the euro area and supported by declining oil prices, accommodative 

monetary policy and improved financial conditions, and in some cases currency depreciation. 

 

Growth in emerging markets and developing economies is projected to increase from 4% in 2015 – the lowest 

since the 2008-9 financial crisis – to 4.3% and 4.7% in 2016 and 2017, respectively. 

 

According to the IMF, the outlook for countries and regions in this segment is explained by strong headwinds 

from China’s economic rebalancing and global manufacturing weakness, the recession in Brazil and economic 

distress in other Latin American countries. Lower oil prices, geopolitical tensions and domestic strife in the 

Middle East also weigh on the outlook. Growth in Sub-Saharan Africa is expected to mainly reflect the continued 

adjustment to lower commodity prices and higher borrowing costs 

 

The IMF warns that unless the key transitions in the world economy are successfully navigated, global growth 

could be derailed. Downside risks to growth include a sharper-than-expected slowdown in China coupled with 

more international spillovers, funding challenges related to potential further dollar appreciation and tighter 

global financing conditions, as well as escalation of ongoing geopolitical tensions affecting confidence and 

disrupting global trade, financial and tourism flows. 
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Against this background, the IMF encourages policy upgrades to avoid low-growth traps. The international 

monetary body underscores the importance of raising output complemented by a combination of demand  

 

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED) 
 

support and structural reforms. Although country specific, central to structural reforms are measures to 

strengthen labor force participation, tackle legacy debt overhang, and lower barriers to entry in product and 

services markets. Policymakers in emerging and developing markets are urged to press on with structural 

reforms to alleviate infrastructure bottlenecks, facilitate a dynamic and innovation-friendly business 

environment, and bolster human capital. 

 

SOUTH AFRICAN ECONOMY 

The South African economy has been growing at below its potential since the 2008 global financial crisis. A mix 

of adverse demand and supply-side factors again took a toll on the economy’s performance during 2015 thereby 

affecting its overall expansion potential.  

 

The lacklustre performance of the South African economy in 2015 is, to a large extent, attributed to subdued 

business and consumer confidence levels, weak domestic and global demand, supply-side constraints, declining 

prices of key export commodities, the slowdown in activity in the agricultural sector and electricity-supply 

constraints. 

 

The global economy is, however, beginning to show signs of recovery in growth, led by developed countries. In 

spite of the signs of optimism about the global economy, the SA economy is not expected to record significant 

growth with the South African Reserve Bank (SARB) projecting 0.9% growth in 2016, and acceleration to 1.6% in 

2017. 

 

A deteriorating inflation outlook prompted the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) of the SARB to raise the repo 

rate by 50 basis points in January 2016. Rising inflation expectations and upside pressures linked to heightened 

exchange rate volatility could result in more rate hikes over the short-term, albeit anticipated to be very gradual. 

The SARB expects inflation to average 6.8% in 2016 and 7.0% in 2017. 

 

Low commodity prices and weak global demand will exert downward pressure on South Africa’s mineral exports. 

However, the balance of payments should continue to benefit from increasing exports to other African markets 

and, on the import front, from low crude oil prices. Hence, the current account deficit is projected to improve 

though that could be offset by continued depreciation of the rand. 

 

The 2016 fiscal budget proposes a quicker reduction in the budget deficit through a mixture of higher revenue 

and tighter expenditure controls. The consolidated budget deficit is expected to decline to 3.2% from 3.9% of 

gross domestic product in 2016/17, and further to 2.4% by 2018/19. 
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Overall, the weak growth environment is likely to exacerbate the already high unemployment, inequality and 

macro-vulnerabilities. In turn, South Africa needs to implement structural reforms to position itself for faster 

growth and better investor returns. This entails government, labour and civil society collaborating with  

 

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED) 
 

business to exploit opportunities to grow the economy, raising consumer and investor confidence and 

stimulating job creation. The current administration is acutely aware of the challenges and its vision and 

priorities to address them are outlined in the 2030 National Development Plan (NDP). 

 

KWAZULU-NATAL ECONOMY 

The KZN economy is characterised by manufacturing, agriculture, transport and tourism. KZN’s manufacturing 

sector is the second largest in the country, after Gauteng and is geared for export - with nearly a third of South 

Africa's manufactured exports being produced in the province. Its diversified nature is significant in propelling 

growth in the province, and generates about 20% of provincial employment. As a result, deterioration in the 

performance of these sectors is immediately felt via slower provincial GDP growth. 

 

With more than 90% of Africa’s imports and exports being conducted by sea, there is potential for further 

development of the SA maritime industry. The Port of Durban remains one of Africa’s most active general cargo 

port. This port handles an average of 60% of South Africa’s cargo in comparison to other South African ports. 

The Richards Bay coal terminal is positioned as one of the world’s deep sea ports with an ability to handle large 

ships and cargo volumes. This port currently has the capacity to export 91 million tons of coal per year. Plans to 

increase the terminal’s capacity by another 19 million tons to 110 million tons augur well for fixed capital 

formation in the province, job creation and economic development.  

 

IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS, HOUSEHOLDS AND INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT 

Domestically, economic growth is expected to remain subdued due to unsatisfactory demand conditions and 

unfavourable external conditions. Household consumption expenditure is slowing, government spending is 

being constrained by fiscal limitations and fixed investment activity is at low levels.  

 

Consumers are likely to cut back on spending in light of a worsening consumer environment which will raise 

financial distress. Households are likely to face numerous challenges in the form of higher debt financing costs 

and difficult access to credit, higher personal income tax and indirect taxes, rising electricity tariffs and lower 

rates of increase in disposable income. Business enterprises that are reliant on household expenditure, are 

therefore faced with difficult trading conditions.  

 

In view of government’s commitment to reduce spending, businesses that are reliant on governmental 

procurement, may find it challenging to sustain sales. Declining infrastructure investment in real terms by state-

owned enterprises could have adverse implications for various sub-sectors of the domestic economy. These 

could include construction companies, civil engineering contractors and various suppliers of materials, including 

cement, steel and chemicals, as well as machinery and equipment, among others.  
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Prospects for private sector fixed investment in South Africa remain subdued as businesses have become very 

cautious in their investment plans.  

 

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED) 
 

On the positive side, certain global and domestic factors could be beneficial for local business enterprises. The 

anticipated stronger growth momentum in the US and UK economies should provide increased business 

opportunities for local enterprises. Further, the rand’s depreciation should continue to facilitate external market 

penetration by export-oriented enterprises. Therefore, investments in new production capacity or in the 

expansion of existing capacity should be made to take advantage of potential opportunities ahead. It is therefore 

imperative that development finance institutions such as the Fund assist in this regard. 
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 MANAGING RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES 
 

KGFT recognises that identifying and managing risks and opportunities is fundamental to the achievement of its 

strategic objectives. 

 

The Board has overall responsibility for Risk Management and ensuring that risk management is embedded into 

all processes and activities of the Fund and has adopted an enterprise risk management (ERM) framework. This 

approach ensures that KGFT takes a holistic view of the risks inherent in its strategy, operations and business 

and that the management of risks is embedded into the planning, business and decision-making processes. It is 

also the responsibility of the Board to Review the Fund’s risk profile from time to time. 

 

The Audit and Risk Committee is mandated to oversee the implementation of the Fund’s ERM framework and 

assesses key risk reports on a quarterly basis.  Operational issues are included in the quarterly reports and are 

managed by the Executive Committee (“EXCO”) and the Management Committee (“MANCO”). 

 

Internal Audit and External Audit provide independent assurance on the effectiveness of risk management to 

the Board. Internal Audit is outsourced to Deloitte due to the size of the organisation. 

 

The diagram below portrays the risk architecture of the KZN Growth Fund 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Board 

 Overall responsibility for risk management 

 Ensure risk management is embedded into  all processes and activities 

 Review group risk profile 

  Audit Committee 

 Set annual audit programme and priorities 

 Monitor progress with audit recommendations 

 Provide risk assurance to the Board 

 Oversee RM structures and processes 

Risk Division 

 Formulate strategy and policy based on risk appetite, risk attitudes 
and risk exposures 

 Receive reports from business units, review risk management 
activities and compile the group risk register 

 Track RM activity in the business units and keep the risk 
management context under review 

Business Units 
Produce business unit specific policy statements  
Identification, assessment and management of day to day risk  
Set risk priorities for business unit 
Monitoring and implementation of risk improvements 

Internal & External Audit 

 Provide risk assurance to the 

Board 
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MANAGING RISK AND OPPORTUNITIES (CONTINUED) 
 

 

STRATEGIC RISK ANALYSIS 

The Trust faces a number of strategic risks that could affect its business operations and ultimately its ability to 

create value in the long term. A strategic risk assessment workshop was facilitated in January 2016 with the 

objective of identifying the top ten strategic risks that could prevent the Trust from achieving its strategic 

objectives. Changes to the Trust’s operating environment and the change in funding model were taken into 

account when identifying the strategic risks. The graph below reflects the Inherent risk of each strategic risk as 

well as the residual risk after taking existing controls into account.  

 

Table – Inherent Risk vs Residual Risk 
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Inherent Risk vs Residual Risk

KGFT Risk is managed on three levels namely strategic, operational and projects. 

 

Strategic risks are those risks that are most consequential to KGFT’s ability to execute its strategies and 

achieve its developmental mandate. These risk exposures can ultimately affect KGFT’s shareholder value or 

the viability of the organization. 

 

Operational risk refers to risks inherent in KGFT’s operations and processes. These are emerging risks 

introduced by internal factors (such as employees, internal processes and systems, etc.) and external factors 

(such as suppliers, regulatory authorities, the economic climate etc.) 

 

Project risk are risks that could impact the progress, result or outcome of a specific project funded by KGFT 

which would result in deviations in expected returns on individual project or impact on the planned 

outcomes of specific value-creating initiatives. 
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MANAGING RISK AND OPPORTUNITIES (CONTINUED) 
 

The table below provides an analysis of the top ten strategic risks affecting the Trust, the current controls in 

place to mitigate those risks, the opportunities presented and a link to the strategic objectives of the Trust 

(which are listed at the end of the table). 

 

Table – Summary of Top Ten Strategic Risks 

Rank Key Risk Risk 

Category 

Current controls Opportunity Link to strategic 

Objectives 

1 Inability of the fund 

to source deals that 

fulfil its investment 

strategy to deliver 

on the mandate 

(job creation and B-

BBEE) 

Strategic 

Risk 

- Implementation of strategy, 

Corporate plan and Annual 

Performance Plan which is aligned 

with the provincial government 

strategies of EDTEA 

- Marketing and Branding the Fund 

- Strategic partnerships, relationships 

with Banks and stakeholder e.g. 

TIKZN 

- Introduction of equity finance and 

diversity in product range enabling 

more promoters to access funding 

 

- Expansion of 

product offering 

and mandate 

 

 

B, C 

2 Inadequate capital 

to support strategic 

objectives 

Strategic 

risk 

- Mechanisms in place to ensure 

relevance - continuous reporting to 

EDTEA and delivery of mandate 

- Manage relationships with all critical 

stakeholders. 

- Proactive restructuring of loans and 

investments  

- Efficient diversification of assets and 

sectors  

- Proactive review, monitoring and 

reporting on portfolio including 

independent monitoring of value add 

and exit thesis 

- Attract new 

sources of capital 

through alternate 

funding structures  

C, D 

3 Failure to attract, 

retain and develop 

key staff 

Operation

al Risk 

- Training and development framework 

and plans 

-  Employee wellness scheme in place 

- Benchmarking of salaries and 

Employee Incentive scheme in place 

- Succession planning  

- Employee climate survey performed 

resulting in action plan  

- Attract additional 

investment skills 

to the province 

 

C 
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4 Credit and 

Investment Risk 

Credit Risk - Policies and Procedures which are 

reviewed on a regular basis 

- Key criteria of Investment and Credit 

policy is captured in submissions 

made. 

- Proactive review, monitoring and 

reporting on portfolio including 

independent monitoring of value add 

and exit thesis 

- Project subject to comprehensive due 

diligence which is reviewed by the 

Investment Committee 

- Formulation of separate debt and 

equity investment teams and 

committees to address potential 

conflict of interest 

- Implementation of  findings of due 

diligence reports to prepare project 

company for exit 

- Fulfil 

developmental 

mandate in 

assisting ailing 

project companies 

B, C, D 

5 Market Risk Market 

Risk 

- Proactive review, monitoring and 

reporting on portfolio including 

independent monitoring and 

implementation of value add and exit 

strategies 

- Proactive restructuring of loans and 

investments  

- Efficient diversification of assets and 

sectors  

- Sensitivity and scenario analysis on 

each project's  financial model prior 

to approval at FAR stage 

- Project team ensures  that legal 

agreements makes provision for 

adequate restructuring in the event 

of adverse changes in macro and 

micro economic environment 

- Implementation of Bloomberg as a 

research tool 

- Establishment of in-house views and 

forecasts  

- Encouraging a 

forward looking 

and proactive 

culture  

B, D 

6 Governance, 

Regulatory, Legal 

and Compliance 

Regulatory 

Risk 

- Policies and Procedures which are 

reviewed on a regular basis. 

- Monitoring and reporting of 

compliance and risk via independent 

function to relevant committees 

- Communication, Training and roll out 

of policies and procedures  

- Implementation of combined 

assurance model framework   

- Maintain good 

governance 

 

A 

7 Geo-political Risk Political 

Risk 

- Monitor political landscape by 

constant engagement /lobbing with 

- Encouraging a 

forward looking 

B 
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key stakeholders and managing key 

relationships. 

- Continuous reporting to EDTEA and 

delivery of mandate 

- EDTEA's representation at key KGFT 

meetings  

and proactive 

culture  

8 Reputation Risk Operation

al Risk 

- Adherence to policies such as 

Politically Exposed People policy and 

Communication & media policies 

-  Upfront communication with regards 

to financing with promoters  

- Adequate staff complement with the 

right skills 

- Background checks and due diligence 

performed 

- Building an ethical 

company culture  

- Turn employees 

into brand 

ambassadors  

B, C 

9 Failure to remain 

financially 

sustainable 

Financial 

Risk 

- Effective annual budgeting process 

including monthly monitoring of 

Actual vs Budget variances 

- Cost cutting measures are 

implemented 

-  Deals are priced according to loan 

pricing policy approved by the Trust  

-  Effective due diligence and post 

investment monitoring of projects  by 

the projects team 

- Maintaining a diversified portfolio  

- Proactive Cash flow management    

- Policies, Procedures and Delegation 

of Authority in place and reviewed 

annually 

- Update of Fund Financial model 

quarterly  

- Quarterly solvency and liquidity 

testing 

- Cost saving 

initiatives 

- Better financial 

control 

D 

10 Ineffective and 

inefficient 

processes and 

systems to 

effectively support 

the strategy of the 

business 

Operation

al Risk 

- Policies and procedures in place and 

reviewed regularly 

- BCP and DRP approved by Board of 

Trustees and tested 

- Risk assessment undertaken to 

determine high risk threats to KGFT 

- External tip-off line for reporting and 

identification of fraud 

 

- Introduction of 

new technologies 

to streamline 

processes  

 

A, C, D 

Strategic Objectives 

A: To maintain sound corporate governance and an unqualified audit opinion; 

B: To utilise government capital to leverage off institutional/private investor’s capital so as to grow the assets under management; 

C: To identify and finance viable private sector projects which demonstrate beneficial, measurable socio economic impact whilst being 

environmentally sustainable and maximises the developmental impact of the Trust’s investments; 

D: To remain financially sustainable by fully committing available funds under management and ensuring appropriate post investment 

management. 
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MANAGING RISK AND OPPORTUNITIES (CONTINUED) 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

At a strategic level, risk management functions  performed by the Board and management include definition of 

risk, determining risk appetite, formulating strategies and policies for managing risk and developing adequate 

systems and controls to ensure that overall risk remains within an acceptable level.  

 

Enterprise risk management which encompasses operational risk is managed by the Risk function whilst 

regulatory risks are managed by the Compliance function. Enterprise Risk management activities are performed 

by the relevant business units and are entrenched through adherence to operational procedures and guidelines 

set by management. Operational Risk management strategies and policies are used in conjunction with 

delegated powers of authority, which detail the authority levels for various transactions. 

 

Project risk assessments are performed to identify key risks that could impact the progress, result or outcome 

of a specific project and actions that are designed to adequately mitigate the risks identified and put in place.   

 

The implementation and effectiveness of planned actions are monitored throughout the duration of the project 

by the Projects and Credit divisions and are reported through project governance structures. Projects Risk are 

also managed by adherence to the Investment, Equity and Credit policies and business process procedure 

approved by the Trust.  

 

The Board has delegated the responsibility for the management of credit and investment risk to the IC. The 

Board has also delegated the approval of Initial Screening Reports to the MANCO in order to facilitate speedy 

turnaround times and to enhance the competitiveness of the Fund. 

 

The IC acts as an independent body and advises the Board, to ensure that the KGFT’s development mandate of 

unlocking growth, promoting B-BBEE and creating sustainable jobs in the KZN economy, are met. The IC is 

responsible for ensuring that extensive due diligence is done on projects requiring funding prior to 

recommending projects for Approval to the Board. The IC is also tasked with the duty to oversee the 

management of projects performance after disbursements to ensure that the Fund maintains a healthy 

portfolio. The Fund always strives to maintain a balance between its developmental mandate and the expected 

returns and risk appetite of its stakeholders. 
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MANAGING RISK AND OPPORTUNITIES (CONTINUED) 
 

KGFT RISK UNIVERSE 

The nature of the business of KGFT exposes it to the following categories of risk: 

 

 
 

FINANCIAL RISK 

Credit (Counterparty) Risk Credit risk is the risk of non-payment by the KGFT financed companies and non-

recoverability of the funding which would result in impairments and write-offs. This risk is managed by robust 

evaluation of projects by the internal committees, entering into legally binding contractual agreements with 

project companies and effective Post Investment Monitoring of the projects. 

 

Interest Rate Risk is the potential variability that KGFT is exposed to owing to changes in the level of interest 

rates.  

 

Liquidity Risk is the risk to a company’s earnings and capital arising from its inability to timely meet obligations 

when they come due without incurring unacceptable losses i.e. the possibility of KGFT being unable to meet 

obligations, repayments and withdrawals at the proper place and time. 

 

Solvency Risk relates to the possibility of KGFT being unable to sustain its business activities and to meet 

commitments, repayments and withdrawals at the proper time and place as a result of it having accumulating 

liabilities which in aggregate exceeds the fair value of its assets. 

 

FINANCIAL RISK

Credit (Counterparty) Risk

Interest Rate Risk 

Liquidity Risk 

Solvency Risk 

Market Risk 

OPERATIONAL RISK

Information, 
Communication and 
Technology (ICT) Risk 

Operational Risk (including 
People Risk) 

Legal and Third Party Risk 

Business Continuity 
Planning 

BUSINESS RISK

Reputational Risk 

Regulatory Risk 

Environmental Health and 
Safety Risk 

Fraud, Theft and Abuse 
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MANAGING RISK AND OPPORTUNITIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Market Risk is the risk that the value of an investment will decrease due to moves in market prices, interest 

rates, exchange rates, market volatilities and competitive mix i.e. the possibility that the market price of an asset 

may change resulting in a capital gain or loss to KGFT upon subsequent realization of the asset. 

 

OPERATIONAL RISK 

Information, Communication and Technology (ICT) Risk is the risk of failures in system support including errors 

in the development of programs, inadequate or untimely management information and inadequate security and 

contingency planning. 

 

Operational Risk (including People Risk) is those that do not have a “direct” financial impact as compared with 

the pure financial risks such as liquidity risk, interest rate risk and credit risk.  Operational risk is the risk resulting 

from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems (inefficient or ineffective), or from external 

events resulting in financial loss.  People risk is defined as possible inadequacies in human capital. This may stem 

from a lack of adequate skills or knowledge, a reward system that fails to motivate properly or loss of key staff 

due to uncertainty.  

 

Legal and Third Party Risk arises from the potential that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits, or adverse 

judgments can disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or condition of KGFT. 

 

Business Continuity Planning is the process whereby an organization ensures the maintenance or recovery of 

operations, including services to customers when confronted with adverse events such as natural disasters, 

technological failures, human error and terrorism. 

 

BUSINESS RISK 

Reputational Risk is the potential that negative publicity regarding KGFT’s business practices or internal 

controls, whether true or not, which could have an impact on the liquidity or capital of KGFT, or cause a decline 

in the customer base, costly litigation or revenue erosion or reductions. 

 

Regulatory Risk is the risk associated with the potential for laws related to a given industry, country or type of 

security to change and impact relevant investments 

 

Environmental Health and Safety Risk is the risk associated with the economic or administrative consequences 

of slow or catastrophic environmental pollution, hazards and the safety of persons in connection with the use 

of plant and machinery, the protection of persons against hazards to health and safety arising out of or in 

connection with the activities of persons at work. 
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MANAGING RISK AND OPPORTUNITIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Fraud, Theft and Abuse is the risk of unlawful and intentional making of a misappropriation by persons internal 

or external to the organization, which causes actual prejudice or which is potentially prejudicial to others. 

 

Compliance Risk is the risk that procedures implemented by KGFT to ensure compliance with the relevant 

statutory, regulatory and supervisory requirements are not adhered to and/or is inefficient and/or ineffective. 

 

MANAGING RISK 

 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity Risk is the risk that KGFT will be unable to service payment obligations timeously. The nature and type 

of business that KGFT engages in exposes it to the following liquidity risks: 

 Inability to repay borrowings; 

 Inability to meet lending commitments; 

 Payments of excessive premiums above market rates in order to attract funds. 

The Trust’s Finance department manages liquidity on a projected cash-flow basis.  The key focus areas in 

managing liquidity risk involves the continuous monitoring of actual and projected cash-flows and maintenance 

of a Liquidity buffer to fund unforeseen cash-flows.  

 

Liquidity risk management strategies and processes include: 

 Preparing cash flow projections regularly to assess available cash against cash requirements  

 Maintaining a buffer of liquid assets  in short term investments  

 Projected cash inflow and outflow estimates and, thus, the net deficit or surplus over a time horizon. 

 

Liquidity risk is measured by conducting an analysis of net funding requirements.  Net funding requirements are 

determined by analysing future cash flows based on the assumptions of the expected behaviour of assets and 

liabilities.  The liquidity position is continuously monitored through the Financial Fund Model (FFM) by EXCO, 

who then reports to the Audit & Risk Committee quarterly. 

 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital arising from movements in interest 

rates. Interest rate risk to KGFT may arise due to: 

 The margin between the interest rates earned on assets and paid on liabilities. 

 The repricing potential of assets and liabilities at different points in time, resulting in mismatches in various 

time bands between the contractual repricing of assets and liabilities; and 

 The period over which these differences persist. 
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Interest Rate Risk (Continued) 

 

Interest rate risk is the responsibility of the EXCO at management level and Audit & Risk Committee at Board 

level. Interest rate risk management strategy manages placement of funds and the balance between risk and 

return, taking into account our view on interest rates. Medium to long-term strategy return include initiatives 

to reduce exposure to interest rate risk. 

 

Concentration Risk 

Funds available for investment are split between various Banking Institutions, with a minimum of 90% of funds 

being invested with Banking institutions with a long term rating of “BBB” (and/or other rating agencies with the 

equivalent ratings) or above or short term rating of F3 or above as listed by Fitch ratings agency (or other rating 

agencies with the equivalent ratings) with the exception of Ithala SOC Ltd as approved by the Board which is 

limited to a total of 10% of available funds. No more than 25% of KGFT investments can be placed with only one 

institution at a time. 

 

Operational Risk 

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed processes or systems, human factors or 

external events. 

 

Operational risk is managed through the implementation of appropriate internal control systems, supported by 

staff training. Clearly defined and documented operational policies and procedures in the form of key controls 

and procedures are maintained and made available to all staff members. To ensure that the policies and 

procedures and control mandates meet KGFT’s requirements, both statutory and commercial, the policies, key 

controls and procedures are subject to review by management and appropriate risk committees to ensure 

ongoing development and maintenance of sound and prudent operational risk policies and procedures. 

 

The Executive management is responsible for the practical implementation of the principles of operational risk 

management and monitoring thereof at departmental level. The Executive management is also responsible for 

the development and maintenance of the procedures for the management of operational risks related to KGFT’s 

products, services, functions, processes and systems 

 

Insurance Risk 

The Trust’s assets and relevant exposures are covered by the relevant insurance policies to minimise losses.  

These insurance policies are reviewed annually. 

 

Business Continuity Management 

The Trust maintains business continuity plans which are tested annually and IT back up is done on a daily basis, 

with weekly full backups maintained at a secure offsite location. 
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MANAGING RISK (CONTINUED) 

 

Technology risk 

Technology risk is the risk of failures in systems, errors in the development of programmes, inadequate or 

inaccurate management information, as well as inadequate security and contingency planning. Technology  

is key to KGFT’s business and hence it’s imperative for us to maintain disaster recovery polices and plans which 

give guidance to operations in the case of disruption. These plans are tested on an annual basis and are adjusted 

in-line with changes in operations, services and strategy.   

 

Compliance Risk 

Compliance risk is the current and prospective risk of damage to the KGFT’s business model or objectives, 

reputation and financial soundness arising from non-adherence with regulatory requirements and expectations 

of key stakeholders such as customers, employees and society as a whole. 

 

Compliance risk therefore not only exposes KGFT to fines, civil claims, loss of authorisation to operate and an 

ability to enforce contracts, but also to reputational damage.   

 

KGFT’s has a dedicated compliance function whose role is to assist management in discharging their 

responsibilities to comply with applicable regulatory requirements. The compliance function assists through the 

identification, assessment, management, monitoring and reporting of compliance risks faced by KGFT. The 

regulatory universe is reviewed and approved on an annual basis and identifies the core legislation applicable 

to KGFT. 

 

Credit Risk Exposure 

The primary focus of risk management is to identify and assesses all risks directly associated with the project 

with a view to determine how well the project can sustain ongoing commercial operations and service its 

obligations on time and in full. 

 

As a Development Finance Institution (DFI), the KGFT is exposed to credit risk in its portfolio. Credit risk 

constitutes the company’s primary source of risk and therefore, it is required to robustly and effectively manage 

this risk. The risk is managed through the various stages of the credit life cycle and value chain to ensure that 

the KGFT delivers on its mandate while remaining financially sustainable in its project finance investments and 

interventions.  

 

KGFT’s approach to risk management is based on well-established governance processes and includes the full 

involvement of the Board, IC and MANCO, supported by policies, procedures and systems. 

 

Credit risk management activities are performed at four distinct stages in KGFT, namely initial acceptance of the 

credit application, ISR, FAR and post investment, guided mainly by the KGFT’s investment, credit and loan pricing 

policies and relevant South African legislative and regulatory requirements.  
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Credit Risk Exposure (Continued) 

The investment policy sets out the basis on which investments to be made by the Fund are approved as well as 

the procedure to be followed for the IC to make investment recommendations to the Board of the Fund for their 

final approval.  

 

The aim of the Investment policy is to establish primarily whether a proposed investment meets the credit 

criteria set out in the credit policy and satisfies the Fund’s development mandate.  

 

The credit policy provides a framework for the evaluation of all new and existing credit exposures, as well as the 

management, control and monitoring of such exposures with the goal of appropriately providing a risk-reward 

profile by maintaining credit risk exposures within acceptable and agreed parameters.  

 

The loan pricing policy provides the basis for calculating the pricing of the loans and sets in place an internal 

methodology and business process for determining the loan pricing strategy in relation to best practice, 

regulation and legislation relevant to the business. 

 

Initial acceptance stage of the Credit Application 

Risk assessment in terms of the relevant and initial credit risk criteria to determine whether the application can 

be considered for further appraisal at the next phase is conducted by the projects department headed by the 

Executive Management. At this stage KGFT does searches using Windeed, Dow Jones and other available risk 

and compliance search tools to identify further risks and if satisfied, the project is advanced to the next stage 

for further assessment. 

 

Initial screening report (ISR) stage  

In terms of the Fund’s Credit Policy, credit applications that are deemed fundable by the projects team are 

subjected to an approval process and entails further risk assessment, consistent with the investment and credit 

policies. The Board has delegated the approval of initial screening reports to the MANCO in order to facilitate 

quick turnaround times and to enhance the competitiveness of the fund.  

 

Final appraisal report (FAR) stage  

Once the ISR has been approved by the MANCO, due diligence reviews are performed in order to assess the 

commerciality and sustainability of the project. The IC is responsible for ensuring that extensive due diligence 

has been done on projects requiring funding, and recommending projects for approval to the Board for final 

approval.  

 

The project promoters is required to submit additional relevant project support information to facilitate robust 

appraisal in preparing the FAR. The FAR is submitted to the IC for assessment and a recommendation for 

approval is made by the IC to the Board.  
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Post investment stage 

Portfolio management is a critical element in ensuring the recovery of all disbursed funds. KGFT has an effective 

system in place to identify, measure, monitor and control risk as part of an overall approach to risk management.  

 

The IC is also tasked with the duty to oversee the management of projects and performance after disbursements 

to ensure that the fund has a performing portfolio. 

 

The established credit policy provides the foundation and guidelines for sound portfolio management and 

includes among other controls the following:   

 Monitoring the compliance with facility agreements; 

 Internal review of portfolio risk rating; 

 Monitoring disbursed funds by means of periodic reports from the project’s management accounts to 

assess the project performance;  

 Annual valuation of securities held;   

 Monitoring events  that may lead to payment default; 

 Risk classification and provisioning of loans; 

 Periodic review of credit processes and credit policy, audit reviews as well as loan recovery strategies. 

Reports on portfolio performance are submitted to the KGFT executives, MANCO, IC and the Board for review.
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 BUSINESS MODEL 
 

The Fund was set up as Public Private Partnership (PPP) which had a fund size of R787.5m. The Fund was a closed 

debt fund with a commitment period until August 2015.  Implementing the Evolution strategy of the Trust, prior 

to the end of the commitment period the KGFT bought out the debt fund by pre-paying the other participants 

in the PPP leaving the Trust as a standalone entity. This left the Fund open to explore other funding models 

which better suit the environment and are more commonly known in the market which makes it easier to attract 

third party funds. Whist it is not a priority mandate of the Fund to manage third party capital, the Trust has taken 

the view that in order to leverage governments capital to maximize the developmental reach of its funds, 

managing third party capital is one possible way of achieving this. To this end the Trust intends to set-up an en-

commandite (or limited liability) partnership following its approved evolution strategy.  

 

The KGFT currently manages its own capital in two internally separated funds namely a debt and an equity fund. 

The management of the two funds are segregated by separate policies and procedures and where practically 

possible staff as well.  The asset allocation of the KGFT determines the size of the respective funds which is 

depicted in the Table below. 

 

Table: Asset Allocation of the KGFT’s Capital 
Sources of Funds R’m Asset Allocation R’m 

Initial Capitalisation (EDTEA) 362.5 Equity Fund 250.0 

Accumulated Allocations (EDTEA) 360.0 Debt Fund 750.0 

Additional Capital Injection (EDTEA) 48.0   

Annual EDTEA allocation* 95.0   

Capitalised Returns 134.5   

Total 1000.0 Total 1 000.0 

*The annual allocation from EDTEA is earmarked for project disbursements. Reduction in annual allocation from R95m 

to R64.4m - resulting in reduced contributions to the Equity Fund and delayed implementation of the Guarantee fund. 

 

The Breakdown of the funds into the asset classes (R250m equity and R750m debt fund) was determined by 

various factors inter alia considerations around minimum requirements for the establishment of a private equity 

fund with strategic institutional partners.   
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 STRATEGY 
 

KGFT is a development finance institution in KZN with a vision of financing growth. Its mission is to support 

sustainable growth in KZN by financing private sector projects that drive economic success, stimulate job 

creation, promote B-BBEE and reduce inequality. 

 

The Fund seeks to fill the capital gap on bankable business plans and commercially viable projects in a 

developmental way without taking very large stakes in the businesses and squashing entrepreneurial spirits. 

Therefore the Fund seeks to differentiate itself from traditional private equity funds in that the KZN Equity Fund 

has a developmental mandate which it seeks to serve in creating jobs, sustainability of various economic sectors 

and empowerment of previously disadvantaged individuals.  

 

The KGFT began the process of establishing possibilities in establishing a guarantee fund in order to address the 

issuance of construction and performance guarantees to smaller BEE building contractors. In this process the 

KGFT has met with market leaders together with the Department of Public Works in KZN and has explored 

various options around the operationalisation of such a fund. It is envisaged that a proposal for the 

implementation of a guarantee fund solution by the Board will be given to the MEC: EDTEA in the 2016/17 

financial year  

 

ALIGNMENT TO PROVINCIAL STRATEGIES 

The Fund is part of a Steering Committee set up by the EDTEA to facilitate strong participation of KZN Black 

Industrialists in the DTI Black Industrialists Scheme.  The Trust has a key role to play in terms ensuring access to 

funding of KZN Black Industrialists in the DTI Black Industrialists Scheme.  The Trust has a key role to play in 

terms ensuring access to funding of KZN based black industrialists and in leveraging the national funding scheme 

and incentives. 

 

ALIGNMENT TO PROVINCIAL GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY (PGDS) 

The Fund has aligned itself to the KZN PGDS through its mandate, mission and investment policy. The Fund is set 

up to provide project finance, debt funding and equity finance to projects within specific target sectors, in areas 

where gaps or backlogs in economic development and job creation have not been adequately addressed by 

traditional financial institutions.  

 

The Fund seeks to align itself to 4 of the 7 strategic goals identified in the KZN 2012 - 2030 PGDP, namely job 

creation, strategic infrastructure development, environmental sustainability and governance and policy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5892
Highlight



   
 

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 41 

 
 

ALIGNMENT TO PROVINCIAL GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY (PGDS) (CONTINUED) 

 

The table below shows the alignment between the PGDP goals and the Fund’s activities. 

 

Alignment of the Trust to PGDP  

Provincial Strategic Goal Objective Trust Alignment  

Goal 1 – Job Creation 

 To expand Provincial economic 

output and employment 

- Enhance industrial 

development through 

trade investment and 

exports. 

- The Fund invests in projects with a high potential of creating 

sustainable jobs in the province in major economic sectors 

i.e. Manufacturing, Tourism , Mining and Mineral 

Beneficiation, Agro-processing and Transport and Logistics   

Goal 4 – Strategic Infrastructure 

development  

To provide Infrastructure for the 

social and economic growth and 

development needs of KZN. 

- Development of ICT 

Infrastructure. 

 

- Develop and improve 

energy production and 

supply. 

- The Fund funds projects which are infrastructure in nature 

i.e. ICT, Telecoms, Transport & Logistics and Healthcare 

infrastructure in the province. It also seeks to improve energy 

production in the province by funding  projects which seek to 

generate, transmit and distribute energy sources such as 

coal, hydro, wind, solar, gas, steam, bio-diesel, wave power 

and nuclear. 

Goal 5 - Environmental 

Sustainability   

To reduce global greenhouse gas 

emissions and create a social-

ecological capacity to adapt to 

climate change 

- Advance alternative 

energy generation and 

reduce reliance on fossil 

fuels. 

- The Fund aligns itself by ensuring that projects being funded 

adhere to Equator Principles (the principles adopted by the 

financial industry as a benchmark for determining, assessing 

and managing social and environmental risk in project 

financing). The Fund ensures that all projects funded are in 

compliance with environmental regulations as per the 

Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism.   The 

Fund also supports alternative energy generation projects.  

Goal 6 - Governance and Policy  

The population of KZN 

is satisfied with the levels of 

government service delivery 

- Eradicate fraud and 

corruption in government 

so that it is corruption 

free 

- Promote participative, 

facilitative and 

accountable governance 

- The Fund adheres to good corporate governance, PFMA and 

King III.  

- The Trust strives to maintain its Clean Audit record. 
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ALIGNMENT TO PROVINCIAL GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY (PGDS) (CONTINUED) 

 

ALIGNMENT TO EDTEA STRATEGIC GOALS 

The Trust has aligned itself to the EDTEA 2014-2019 strategic goals through its mandate, mission and investment 

policy as follows: 

 

Alignment of the Trust to the EDTEA 

Strategic Goals Strategic Objectives  Trust Alignment 

Lead and Coordinate 

Integrated Economic 

Planning and 

Development. 

- To facilitate the implementation of B-BBEE 

strategy and policies. 

- To drive growth of the KZN provincial 

economy. 

 

 

 

- The Fund‘s investment mandate promotes B-

BBEE by requiring a minimum of 30% BEE 

shareholding or level 4 B-BBEE in all projects it 

provides funding.  

- The Fund was initially created to fund projects 

which bring economic development in the 

province.  The Trust mandate has expanded to 

include investment of no more than 50% of 

funds under management in the rest of South 

Africa. 

 

Facilitate sustainable 

and inclusive economic 

growth to ensure job 

creation.  

- To enhance sector and industrial 

development through Trade, Investment and 

Exports Logistics, ICT, Manufacturing, Green 

economy, agri-business, Tourism, Creative 

Industries, Maritime, Aerotropolis, Aviation. 

- Development of ICT infrastructure. 

- To investigate and develop viable alternative 

energy generation options. 

 

- The Fund funds infrastructure projects in the 

following sectors; Manufacturing, ICT, Agro-

processing, Mining and Mineral Beneficiation, 

Energy and Transport and Logistics in support 

of this objective. 

Develop and Transform 

the tourism sector to 

achieve destination 

competitiveness 

- To develop and fund the implementation of 

tourism sector specific products. 

- The Fund supports projects in the Tourism 

sector by funding infrastructure associated 

with natural, cultural, man-made and business 

attractions. It also funds Infrastructure 

including accommodation facilities such as 

hotels, lodges and game parks. 
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 OUR STAKEHOLDERS 
 

KGFT recognises that managing relationships with its various stakeholders is key for the effective execution of 

its mandate and to ensure the long term sustainability of the Fund. KGFT interacts regularly with its stakeholder 

groups in order to understand and respond to legitimate stakeholder concerns. 

 

Stakeholder 

Group 

Stakeholder opportunity Engagement Methods What we engage on Link to Strategic 

Objectives 

Provincial 

Government 

- To facilitate the 

alignment of KGFT’s 

objectives with 

government priorities 

- To monitor 

performance and 

report on activities  

 

- Regular meetings with 

the MEC: EDTEA 

- Quarterly performance 

reporting  

- EDTEA representatives 

attend KGFT Board 

meetings 

- Presentations to EDTEA 

and KZN Finance 

Portfolio Committee 

- KGFT’s Corporate Plan 

and Annual Performance 

Plan 

- KGFT’s developmental 

role 

- Strategy and long-term 

sustainability 

- Financial performance 

- Carrying out of the 

mandate  

 

A, B 

Clients (Existing 

and prospective) 

- To understand client 

needs 

- Enhance 

Developmental impact 

- Attract funding 

opportunities 

- Inform clients of how 

to apply for funding  

 

- Client meetings 

- Marketing Campaigns 

- Roadshows 

- Website 

- Business Networking 

- KGFT’s Audio Visual  

- Brochures 

- Social Media 

- Transaction tombstones 

- Client needs (funding 

and non-funding 

support) 

- Job creation 

- Perceptions and 

expectations 

- Environmental impact 

C, D 

Employees - To understand and 

respond to staff needs 

and concerns 

- To align employees’ 

work with the 

corporate strategy and 

performance targets 

- To create an inclusive 

environment where 

employees feel valued 

and committed 

- Regular staff meetings 

- Identification of training 

and development needs  

- Performance Reviews 

- Presentations and 

workshops 

- Employee wellness 

initiatives 

- Employee Climate 

surveys 

 

- KGFT’s strategy 

- Internal developments 

- Financial performance 

- Development and 

Training 

- Internal policies and 

procedures and any 

changes thereto  

- Performance 

Management 

- Employee Code of 

Conduct 

 

A, C, D 

Suppliers - To ensure timeous, 

cost effective 

- Meetings with suppliers - Supplier performance A 
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Stakeholder 

Group 

Stakeholder opportunity Engagement Methods What we engage on Link to Strategic 

Objectives 

procurement of goods 

and services from 

quality suppliers 

- Advertisement of 

Bids/Tenders 

- KGFT’s website 

- KGFT’s procurement 

practises (including the 

prioritisation of B-BBEE 

suppliers) 

- Service Level 

Agreements/Contracts/

Engagement letters 

Strategic 

Partners, Industry 

Bodies and other 

government 

business 

enterprises 

- To increase the 

exposure and market 

presence of the Fund 

through strategic 

interaction. 

- Roadshows 

- Business Breakfasts 

- Participation/involveme

nt in industry bodies 

and  business 

associations 

- Memorandum of 

Understanding with  

- Advertising 

- Brochures 

- Understanding KGFT’s 

mandate and 

developmental role in 

KZN 

- KGFT’s offering 

- Financial performance 

- Future partnership 

opportunities 

 

B, C, D 

Media - To enhance KGFT’s 

reputation as the 

Financier of choice in 

the KZN Province  

- Direct engagement 

with Media 

(interviews/media 

briefings) 

- Print Media 

- Changes and updates to 

KGFT’s business offering  

- Success  

C, D 

Strategic Objectives 

A: To maintain sound corporate governance and an unqualified audit opinion; 

B: To utilise government capital to leverage off institutional/private investor’s capital so as to grow the assets under management; 

C: To identify and finance viable private sector projects which demonstrate beneficial, measurable socio economic impact whilst being 

environmentally sustainable and maximises the developmental impact of the Trust’s investments; 

D: To remain financially sustainable by fully committing available funds under management and ensuring appropriate post investment 

management. 
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 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 
REPORT ON PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016  

 

*The number of jobs created is an estimated number derived through the use of project specific funding models requirements, automation level and 

conditions and general internally accepted guidelines and principles at the time of project funding approvals by the Board. 

 

Programme 2:  

Project Finance 

2.1 Sub-Programme Name: Project Administration 

2.1.1 Estimated (direct/indirect) job 

opportunities to be supported or 

created* 

Fully commit all available 

funds to viable projects 

Quarterly 150 702 

2.1.2 % of disbursed projects meeting B-

BBEE investments policy criteria 

(no of projects meeting the B-BBEE 
criteria/total no of projects 
disbursed) 

Quarterly 100% of 

projects 

meeting B-BBEE 

investment 

policy criteria 

100% of projects 

meeting B-BBEE 

investment policy 

criteria 

2.2 Sub-Programme Name: Project Disbursements 

2.2.1 Rand value of Projects disbursed Fully commit all available 

funds to viable projects 

Quarterly R150m 

 

R168m 

2.3 Sub-Programme Name: Aftercare 

2.3.1 To maintain the % of performing 

loans in the portfolio (No of 

performing loans/total no of loans) 

To ensure appropriate 

portfolio management 

and aftercare is being 

performed so as to strive 

toward good asset quality 

and long term sustainable 

growth of the Trust 

Quarterly At least 95% 

performing 

loans within the 

total loan 

portfolio 

80% performing 

loans 

Programme 1: 

Administration 

Programme/Sub-programme/ 

Performance Indicator  

Objectives Reporting 

Period 

Annual Target Annual Result 

1.1 Office of the CEO 

1.1.1 Maintain clean external audit 

opinion 

To obtain and maintain 

an unqualified audit 

opinion 

Annually Achieve a clean 

audit report for 

the 2014/15 

financial year end 

Achieved clean 

audit report for the 

2014/15 financial 

year end 

1.1.2 % Growth in the Fund Size (current 

fund size R787.5m) 

Grow the assets under 

management by the Trust 

Annually Equal to more 

than CPI as at 31 

March 2016 

38.4% growth in 

assets under 

management 

1.2 Sub-Programme Name: Financial Administration 

1.2.1 % procurement spend on targeted 

B-BBBEE suppliers (procurement 

spend on targeted suppliers level 4 

below/total procurement spend) 

To provide effective and 

transparent financial 

management systems. 

Annually 75% of 

procurement 

from suppliers 

with a BEE level of 

4 and below 

86% procurement 

spent with supplies 

of level 4 and below 

1.2.2 Solvency Ratios (total assets/total 

liabilities) 

Quarterly 1:1 47:1 

1.2.3 Liquidity Ratio (current 

assets/current liabilities) 

Quarterly 1:1 26:1 
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 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 

While we had set-out to achieve a net profit of R41.3m this year, we recorded a profit of R78.5m. This was largely 

attributable to the recognition of interest earned of Fund II funds previously held in a warehousing capacity 

amounting to R42m to the income statement offset by a provision for doubtful debts that was raised amounting 

to R19.2m. The revised funding model approved by the MEC in April 2015 will ensure that the Trust continues 

in its growth trajectory in the 2016/17 financial year going forward. 
 

Key Performance Measures 

Rands 2016 2015 % Change 

Profitability 

Interest Income 128 714 899 55 126 448 133% 

Raising fee      -              900 000    (100%) 

Interest paid     (1 250 424) (3 136 157) (60%) 

Other Income          59 558  3 363 209  98% 

(Provision)/Reversal of provision for doubtful debts    (19 286 073)  22 313 332    (186%) 

Operating expenses   (29 743 344)   (27 994 932) (6%) 

    

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 580 699 100   594 784 041  (2%) 

Loans and advances    

New loans and advances 120 000 000  291 999 500  (59%) 

Repayments  (48 238 485)  (182 80 155)  (74%) 

Gross loans and advances  481 387 300  363 416 961  32% 

Provision for impairments (19 286 073)    0   

Net loans and advances 462 101 227  363 416 961  27% 

Provision for impairments as a % of gross loans & advances 4% 0%  

Non-performing loans and advances 67 641 000                            -    100% 

Total Assets 1 094 499 747  962 048 184  14% 

    

Liabilities 

Deferred funds   - 447 783 660  (100%) 

Loans and borrowings                            -    -   

Provisions, accruals and other liabilities 4 511 349 2 634 580 71% 

Total Liabilities     4 511 349    450 418 240  (99%) 

    

Ratios 

Total Liabilities to Total Assets 0.00 0.47  

Current Assets to Current liabilities 138.30 262.63  

    

Equity    

Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders    1 089 988 399   511 629 944  113% 

    

Operations 

No of employees 18 19  

Previously disadvantaged South Africans 15 16  

No of females 12 11  
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 CONTRIBUTING VALUE TO THE ECONOMY 
 

ECONOMIC VALUE ADD STATEMENT 

  

KZN Growth Fund Trust contributed value to the local economy and created wealth for its stakeholders for the current 

and previous reporting periods as follows: 

Rands 2016 2015 

Interest income             128 714 899              55 126 448  

Raising fee -             900 000 

other income                    59 593                3 363 209  

Direct economic Value generated             128 774 456              59 389 657  

   

To suppliers in payment of operating expenses             8 335 045              8 825 053  

To employees             19 992 834              16 390 190  

To providers of Funds                                -                4 957 323  

Other interest paid                1  250 424                    115 841  

Unemployment insurance Fund                   66 038                      65 836  

Skills development levies                160 087                     138 857  

Property rates and taxes                107 861                   130 367  

Economic value distributed             29 912 290              30 288 407  

   

Accumulated profit             98 862 166                29 101 249  

Provision for doubtful debts             (19 286 073)       22 313 332 

Depreciation and amortisation               1 081 478                   842 682  

Economic value retained for expansion growth             78 494 616                50 571 900  

 

Economic value added during the year is represented by payments made to employees and service 

providers, amounting to R19m (2015: R16m) and R8m (2015: R8m) respectively.  

 

KGFT is committed to promoting economic growth through applying the Preferential Procurement 

Policy Framework Act, 5 of 2000 (PPPFA) regulations when appointing service providers. This includes 

the need for bidding service providers to be B-BBEE compliant as part of the selection criteria.  

 

The KZN Growth Fund procures goods and services from consultants, contractors and other suppliers 

mainly through open tenders. The figure below reflects expenditure during the year under review by 

service category. 
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CONTRIBUTING VALUE TO THE ECONOMY (CONTINUED) 

 

 
 

The KZN Growth Fund also promotes the procurement of goods and services from KZN based service providers. 

About 95% of the procurement spend in the year under review was to KZN based suppliers. 
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 SOCIO-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

APPROVED FUNDING 

In the year under review, the Fund approved funding amounting to R260.5m for three projects in the healthcare, 

telecommunications and manufacturing sectors. Each of these projects contribute key socio-economic benefits 

for the Province and the country, in line with the Fund’s mandate. The key elements of social and economic 

development of these projects can be summarised as follows: 

 Economic empowerment through the creation of black industrialists 

 Creation of employment opportunities in excess of 702 

 Reducing inequalities by bringing essential economic and social infrastructure to communities who 

previously had little or no access 

 Development of skills and enterprises during the construction of the funded infrastructure 

 Stimulation of economic activity in related industry value chains 

 Improved health and life expectancy through products that support the government programs on 

HIV/AIDS 

The current portfolio as at financial year end consists of 7 projects, which have either been disbursed or 

committed to. The committed and/or disbursed funding have resulted in the creation of up to 2 112 job 

opportunities. 

 

THE DTI’S BLACK INDUSTRIALISTS SCHEME 

The Trust is a key stakeholder in the implementation of the DTI’s Black Industrialists Scheme.  The Trust fully 

supports the initiative, whose principles are deeply aligned with the mandate of the Trust.  To this end the Trust 

has engaged with the DTI during the planning of the programme implementation and has been subsequently 

appointed to sit on the national Financing Forum with other developmental funding institutions to evaluate co-

funding opportunities on the scheme. 

 

At the provincial level, the Trust is part of a Steering Committee set up by the EDTEA department to develop a 

policy and framework for the implementation of a KZN focused scheme to develop, support and promote KZN-

based Black Industrialists.  The Trust will play a key role, in partnership with other EDTEA entities, in addressing 

funding challenges faced by Black Industrialists.  The Trust will play a key role, in partnership with other EDTEA 

entities, in addressing funding challenges faced by Black Industrialists.  This will have huge socio-economic 

benefits and unlock industrial potential whilst changing the pattern of ownership and control. 

 

The details of each of the projects approved for funding are presented in the following case studies. 
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SOCIO-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED) 

 

CASE STUDIES 

 

 
 

DARK FIBRE AFRICA (PTY) LTD  

The Fund approved a term loan of R100m to Dark Fibre Africa (Pty) Ltd (DFA) as part of an ongoing capital 

expenditure programme aimed at expanding the company’s fibre infrastructure coverage. The Fund participated 

with other lenders (RMB, ABSA, Stanlib, Futuregrowth, Investec and Liberty) in providing this facility to DFA. The 

funds raised were used to finance the deployment of fibre optic networks in metro areas, including Durban. 

 

The Fund has continually supported DFA since its inception. Today DFA is one of the biggest carrier neutral 

broadband infrastructure providers in the country with over 8 000km of fibre nationwide. The network enables 

the provision of high-speed voice, data and video services to a range of customers, including mobile network 

operators, fixed network operators, internet service and content providers. At household level, this results in 

reduced communication costs and improved quality of services. 

 

DFA currently has a staff compliment of 390 people. To date, DFA has created in excess of 4 200 job 

opportunities, directly and indirectly. Indirect jobs are mainly created through the use of contractors to deploy 

the fibre. The additional job opportunities created by the current year disbursement is 100. DFA is a BBBEE Level 

2 contributor and engages contractors of B-BBEE compliance level rating of 4 or better, prioritising use of black, 

female-owned vendors.  DFA contractors are obliged to use minimum of 30% local community labour. 

 

 



   
 

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 51 

 
 

SOCIO-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED) 
 

KWADUKUZA PRIVATE HOSPITAL 

 

 
 

 
 

In the year under review, the Fund approved funding of a private hospital in KwaDukuza. The project entails the 

design, construction, commissioning, operation and maintenance of an acute private hospital situated in the 

KwaDukuza Local Municipality, part of the iLembe District Municipality. The hospital will be a Level 2 general 

private hospital providing health services in various fields of medicine. 

 

The project is the brainchild of the KwaDukuza Independent Practitioners Association Investment Company 

(KDIPA InvestCo). KDIPA InvestCo, a group of doctors from the area, identified a shortage of private hospital 

beds in KwaDukuza and the greater iLembe district. The KwaDukuza Private hospital aims to address the 

shortage by delivering high quality and accessible healthcare services to the entire district area. This will serve 

the KwaDukuza communities who previously have had to travel far to access private healthcare. 
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SOCIO-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED) 
 

The Fund has been very instrumental in assisting KDIPA InvestCo to develop the project to a bankable stage over 

the last few years, which has culminated in the Trust acquiring an equity stake in the project. The project has a 

strong BEE participation, with KDIPA InvestCo, a 100% black owned entity having a substantial 35% equity stake 

in the hospital company. Approximately 457 job opportunities will be created which include 157 permanent jobs 

and 300 temporary jobs during construction. 

 

HBM-SA HEALTH PROTECTION 

 

 
 

During the year under review, the Fund approved R42.5m debt funding towards the setting up of the second 

condom manufacturing facility in the country, which will be located within the Dube Trade Port. The facility will 

manufacture condoms primarily for the supply to the government free-issue condoms. This supply is currently 

being fulfilled via imports. This project will contribute by localising the manufacturing of a product that is 

predominantly imported. 

 

The existence of this facility in the country will provide spin-off opportunities for small and medium enterprises 

in the respective value chains.  International skills and technical expertise relating to the operation of the plant 

will be transferred to local individuals by the international partner. The project will result in foreign direct 

investment through the 25% investment by an American entity. 

 

The project also contributes to promoting the creation of a black industrialist, as 38.3% of the shareholding is by 

black individuals who are actively involved in the running of the business. 

 

A total of 145 employment opportunities will be created by the manufacturing facility. 
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 REPORT OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE  
 

This report is presented by the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (the HR Committee) and 

describes how the committee has discharged its duties in respect of the 2015/16 financial year. 

 

MANDATE OF THE COMMITTEE 

The HR Committee has an independent oversight and advisory role. The HR Committee operates in accordance 

with a Board-approved mandate and is governed by a formal terms of reference, which have been approved by 

the Board of Trustees and is regularly reviewed. The HR Committee can utilise the services of independent 

advisors on specialist matters as required. 

 

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE 

The HR Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive members, and is chaired by an 

independent member. The remaining two members are Trustees on the Board of Trustees. The composition of 

the HR Committee consist of members with the qualifications and experience necessary to fulfil the 

responsibilities of the committee. The Executive Management of the Trust are invited to attend committee 

meetings. A quorum for meetings is the majority of members being present. 

 

ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS 

The HR Committee met five times during the period under review. Details of attendance at meetings are 

included in section 20 (Corporate Governance) of the integrated report. 

 

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE 

The HR Committee is responsible for all matters relating to the Human resources functions within the KGFT 

environment. A detailed work plan was formally adopted to ensure the effective functioning of the HR 

Committee. These responsibilities include: 

 Ensure that Executive management are adequately informed of best practice in human resource 

management; 

 assists the board in ensuring that the Trust remunerates its employees fairly and responsibly and that the 

disclosure of remuneration is accurate, complete and transparent and in accordance with the laws and 

regulations applicable to the Trust; 

 oversees the establishment of a remuneration strategy which promotes the achievement of the Trust’s 

strategic objectives and encourage individual performance; 

 evaluates the performance of the Chief Executive Officer together with the Chairman of the Board of Trustees 

in determining his/her remuneration / performance bonus; 

 performs an annual review of the employee engagement evaluation; and 

 exercises oversight of matters related to human resource management and succession planning. 
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KEY ACHIEVEMENTS OF THE HR COMMITTEE DURING THE YEAR 

During the year under review the HR Committee: 

 reviewed and recommended the approval of the HR strategy by the Board of Trustees; 

 exercised oversight over salary increases and performance bonuses; 

 reviewed various Trust policies; 

 set, in conjunction with the CEO and the Chairman of the Board of Trustees, the CEO’s key performance 

indicators (KPIs) and carried out the necessary review of performance against the set KPIs; 

 reviewed the results of the employee engagement survey; 

 performed a review the Trust organogram; 

 had oversight of the Trust’s employment equity reporting; 

 reviewed the Trust’s reward and recognition strategy, and 

 exercised oversight of matters related to human resource management and succession planning. 

 

The HR Committee is satisfied that it has, during the past financial year met its responsibilities as stipulated in 

its terms of reference and that it has complied with all its legal, regulatory and other responsibilities. 

 

REMUNERATION STRATEGY AND POLICY 

The Board has ultimate responsibility for the remuneration policy. The Trust’s remuneration strategy is aimed 

at attracting, motivating and retaining competent and talented leaders and staff in order to ensure that its 

business remains sustainable. Remuneration levels are influenced by the scarcity of skills and work performance. 

 

A performance based incentive scheme has been introduced and it has been rolled out to all levels of the Trust 

to acknowledge the contribution of individual employees by rewarding them for exceptional performance. KPIs 

are identified and agreed between each staff member and his/her immediate superior and his/her performance 

is measured against these agreed indicators. Individuals’ KPIs are linked to the Trust’s KPIs as a means of ensuring 

that the Trust achieves its objectives. A reward and recognition programme has also been implemented. 

 

Remuneration packages are benchmarked to similar positions in the industry to ensure that they are fair and 

competitive. 

 
_______________________ 

Ms G Simelane 

Chairman of the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee 
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 OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE  
 

HUMAN CAPITAL INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT 

 

 
 

At the end of the financial year, the Trust employed 18 employees with 16 permanent employees and 2 contract 

employees. During the 2015/16 financial year, the Trust appointed 8 new employees, and 7 employees left 

employment. The representation of the Trust’s workforce is demonstrated in the graph below. The Composition 

of the Trust’s MANCO is demonstrated as follows: 
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OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (CONTINUED) 
 

REMUNERATION REPORT 

For KGFT to achieve its mandate, the organisation is committed to a remuneration philosophy that: 

 Supports the execution of the mandate and business strategy. 

 Promotes good governance and risk management. 

 Aligns its policies, procedures and practices with best practice, and legislation (the PFMA, and King III, in 

particular). 

 Motivates and reinforces performance at all levels (organisational, functional and individual). 

 

KGFT’s application of its remuneration philosophy aims to meet the strategic objectives of: 

 Aiming to be market competitive in specific labour markets in order to attract, retain and motivate key and 

talented people. 

 Determining the value proposition of the various job levels required by KGFT. 

 Ensuring that the hybrid of performance and competency management forms an integral part of 

remuneration, thereby influencing the remuneration components of base pay and incentives. 

 Payment is fair, appropriately structured and competitive remuneration. 

 Applying good governance to remuneration practices within approved structures. 

 Supporting KGFT’s culture as embedded in its values. 

 

EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION 

The Board is committed to attracting, motivating, managing and retaining employees of the highest calibre for 

KGFT through the payment of fair, appropriately structured and competitive remuneration. KGFT recognises a 

mix of both competitive and performance in its remuneration structure. 

 

The remuneration packages for the Employees are divided into fixed and variable components including short-

term performance incentives. KGFT is currently implementing a long-term incentive scheme which it expects to 

finalise during the 2016/17 financial year. The long-term incentives will seek to ensure that KGFT’s ultimate long-

term delivery outcomes are achieved. 

 

GUARANTEED PACKAGES 

All employees, including Executives, receive a guaranteed package (GP) based on their roles and responsibilities. 

Contribution to retirement and medical benefits are included in the GP.  

 

The HR Committee reviews the CEO’s remuneration and makes recommendations to the Board for 

consideration. 

 

KGFT provides a range of benefits to employees over and above their guaranteed remuneration packages. Key 

benefits include risk benefits, study assistance for employees, annual leave, sick leave, as well as maternity and 

paternity leave. 
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GUARANTEED PACKAGES (CONTINUED) 

 

Increases in GP for employees are based on a review of market data amongst others, the consideration of 

individual performance and potential, and the business priorities of KGFT. 

 

SHORT-TERM INCENTIVES 

All employees, including Executives, participate in a yearly short-term incentive plan.  Bonus payments are 

discretionary and depend on business performance and individual contribution.  

 

The performances of the employees are measured against pre-determined goals as approved by the Board. 

 

RETENTION PAYMENTS 

Following the finalisation of the corporate strategy during the financial year, the Board approved the 

implementation of a retention incentive policy.   

 

This was aimed at ensuring that critical skills were maintained within KGFT, providing stability in the 

organisation.   

 

Details of the remuneration of Executive Management are reflected in the notes to the Annual Financial 

Statements. 

 

TALENT MANAGEMENT DRIVE 

KGFT has developed a strategic framework for the management of talent within the organisation, in order to 

ensure that the right people with the right skills are in the right roles at the right time to deliver on KGFT’s Five 

Year Corporate Plan.  

 

This aspect is governed by an approved Talent Management Framework, which identifies mission-critical 

positions and a succession plan to be followed to adequately manage the risks associated with staff movement 

and development in the organisation. 

 

ORGANISATIONAL CULTURE 

A move towards a “transparent” culture has been adopted by KGFT, by way of keeping MANCO members and 

other staff members abreast of all developments within the organisation in the form of monthly newsletters, 

quarterly staff feedback meetings and fortnightly MANCO meetings. Invitations were extended to all MANCO 

members to the annual Strategic Planning session held in November 2015 to create awareness of KGFT’s 

strategic plan on all levels.  

 

Furthermore, MANCO has also been directly involved in the creation of the Corporate Plan as well as the Annual 

Performance Plan to enable understanding and follow-through of the organisations objectives, as outlined in 

these documents. Further organisational transparency is enforced by KGFT’s subscription to  
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ORGANISATIONAL CULTURE (CONTINUED) 

“Whistleblowers” in an effort to ensure the availability of anonymous reporting methods for instances of 

suspected occupational fraud. 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

The Performance Management Policy has been reinforced to enable recognition and rewarding of excellent 

achievements within the organisation. Training and development measures, as well as on-the-job coaching is 

provided to employees to enable and encourage greater performance standards on an employee level, and 

inevitably, thereby impacting on overall performance of the organisation.  

 

Our culture of open and honest dialogue promotes immediate and direct performance feedback between the 

manager, employee and team to help individuals identify performance gaps and address development needs 

more accurately and effectively. 

 

EMPLOYEE WELLNESS 

During the reporting period, various interventions were implemented which were aimed at working towards 

employee wellbeing in the categories of financial, emotional, physical and psychological wellbeing. The KGFT 

has outsourced the function to an independent leading professional firm in the area of expertise. The services 

includes various interventions that promote the well-being of employees, and has been successfully 

implemented during the year.  

 
                                           KGFT Wellness Programme 
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OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (CONTINUED) 
 

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT 

Actual training spend for the year amounted to R0.24m, in addition to these interventions, many other training 

exercises were undertaken as pro bono customer service initiatives from KGFT service providers, as follows: 

 Employment Equity Training (Department of Labour) 

 Fraud Training (Whistleblowers) 

 Supply Chain Management Training (National Treasury) 

 FICA Training (Compliserve) 

 

KGFT has complied with the requirement to submit a workplace skills plan to BankSeta by 30 April. The 

organisation will be applying for available funded Seta programmes during the upcoming 2016/17 financial year. 

 

INTERNSHIP PROGRAMME 

In addition, one graduate sponsored by KGFT is undergoing an internship programme which aims to address 

challenges in filling critical and scarce project finance skills that are not readily available in KZN. This programme 

is currently being undertaken as a pilot programme and is expected to grow in future years.  

 
Nkosikhona grew up in uMlazi Township (Durban) and after matriculating proceeded with 

obtaining his B.Com degree at the University of Cape Town. Having majored in Economics and 

Statistics, Nkosikhona was selected at the Funds first intern within the projects function. The 

internship provides practical experience and training within project finance and equity related 

investments. Training interventions includes both formal training courses and on-the-job coaching 

including development facilitation and mentorship by a selected Senior Investment Officer.  

 
My journey in life is still at an early stage; however I believe that the guidance that I obtain through 

the internship programme will equip me to make a positive contribution to the social and economic 

environment in which I find myself. 

 
Nkosikhona Mbhele 
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OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (CONTINUED) 
 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY REPORT 

Information Technology (IT) remains a critical enabler of the KGFT’s strategy and overall organisational 

performance. In this regard, the KGFT has placed emphasis and focus on the governance of IT in line with good 

corporate governance and King III principles.  The KGFT’s Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that there 

is effective IT governance in place, including the alignment of the IT strategy to the Trust’s strategic objectives.  

Responsibilities of the Board are executed through the Audit and Risk Committee which has been delegated the 

authority to oversee the successful implementation of the KGFT’s IT governance framework.  IT forms an integral 

part of the KGFT’s risk management and ARC considers the impact of IT on financial controls as part of the 

organisation’s audit plan. 

 

The KGFT’s EXCO provides regular updates to Audit and Risk Committee on the status of significant IT initiatives, 

in addition to other governance-related issues.  Amongst the IT governance imperatives, the KGFT has ensured 

that periodic Disaster Recovery (DR) tests are conducted. The KGFT will continue to review and improve the 

overall DR solution in the future. The overall IT security posture of the KGFT has also received due focus, with 

continuous improvement initiatives being rolled out during the year, together with the provision of IT security 

awareness training to the business. 

 

During the past year, the KGFT has made significant investments in refreshing and upgrading its hardware 

infrastructure, together with critical business systems. 

 

With the planned IT development and rollout of a new enterprise architecture as envisaged in the IT Strategy, 

IT is well placed to enable the KGFT to both exceed stakeholders’ expectations and to ultimately contribute 

towards the realisation of strategies of the Trust in achieving its mandate.  

 

MARKETING REPORT 

During the 2015/16 financial year, KGFT continued with the implementation of its marketing strategy that was 

developed in the previous financial year.  The strategy included the Trust’s short, medium and long term 

marketing requirements, ultimately aimed at re-profiling the organization and repositioning the KGFT corporate 

Brand 

 

In 2015/16 KGFT undertook the branding exercise to introduce the KGFT as an equity financier to the market. 

This exercise was concluded towards the end of 2015/16 financial year with significant traction being realised in 

terms of mobilising and repositioning the brand as “Inspired Investing” thereby clearing defining the niche 

market and product offering of “Project Finance, Structured Debt and Equity Finance”. The outcome of the 

marketing and brand strategy project has improved the quantity and quality of projects received by the Trust. 

The new product offering has unlocked deals resulting in an increase in deal flow activity 
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OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE (CONTINUED) 
 

The brand mobilisation comprised active participation in events that show cased entities within EDTEA, 

attendance of high profile local and global networking events, which was complemented by advertising which 

included advertorials and advertising at the airport.  

 

The synergies identified between EDTEA entities were effected during the current financial year. The 

collaborative relationship with Trade & Investment KZN (“TIKZN”) resulted in national roadshows which included 

the CEOs positioning KZN as an investment destination.  The relationships forged during the year with TIKZN, 

Richards Bay IDZ and Dube Trade Port resulted in improved collaborative efforts in projects financed during the 

year. 

 

The momentum attained in terms of the Marketing activities will continue into the next financial year, with the 

focus being on entrenching our product and position in the market, thereby driving our vision “To be KZN’s 

leading development financier and impact investor”.  

 

 

The MPact ribbon cutting event by the KZN MEC: EDTEA, Mr. Michael Mabuyakhulu on 26 January 2016. 
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 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

APPLICATION OF GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES 

KGFT strives for the overarching governance principles of accountability, fairness, transparency and 

responsibility. The Trust is established in terms of a Trust Deed which is legally governed by the Trust Property 

Control Act, 57 of 1998. The Trust Deed determines the mandate of the Trust. Historically, the entity was neither 

a Company nor a listed Public Entity in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1 of 1999 (PFMA). When 

the Debt Fund was set up in 2008, it was deemed not to be a PFMA entity by virtue of private sector lenders’ 

facilities being more than 50 per cent of the size of the Fund as well as the fact that some of the decisions at a 

governance level needed to be made through consultation between the lenders and government.  

 

However, the Board elected to comply with the PFMA as a Schedule 3D Public Entity (government business 

enterprise). In terms of the new funding model, the Trust will be deemed to be a PFMA entity and has therefore 

begun the process of listing as a public entity with National Treasury. KGFT endorses King III and has 

endeavoured to adhere to the recommendations thereof as far as possible. KGFT is also aligned with and 

supports all the relevant legislation in South Africa that applies to its activities.  

 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

In line with section 52 of the PFMA, KGFT submitted a Shareholder Compact and Corporate Plan to the EDTEA 

for the 2015/16 financial year. This serves as an agreement between KGFT and the beneficiary and documents 

the key performance measures and targets against which organisational performance is assessed. The Board 

reports on performance and related matters to the beneficiary by way of quarterly reports and regular meetings 

are held between the Board Chairman, the CEO and the MEC. 

 

Based on the Corporate Plan, the Board sets KGFT’s strategic objectives and determines its performance criteria. 

Management is then charged with the detailed planning and implementation of those objectives, within 

appropriate risk parameters. 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

The Board takes overall responsibility for directing KGFT towards achievement of its strategic objectives, vision 

and mission, as well as the Trust’s overall performance.  

 

The Board is governed by the Trust Deed which records its objective to provide responsible business leadership 

and details duties of individual Trustees in the course of discharging their duties.  In addition to the Trust Deed, 

the board operates in terms of an approved Board Charter which sets out the Board’s role and responsibilities 

as well as the requirements for its composition and meeting procedures. The Board considers the charter as a 

living document, updated periodically to align with changes required by relevant legislation and regulation.  
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES (CONTINUED) 

The Board has a diverse mix of skills, expertise and experience which is required to meet KGFT’s strategic 

objectives.  This includes but is not limited to appropriate legal, engineering, banking, project finance, private 

equity, human resources, quantity surveying, infrastructure and development finance, and governance 

experience and expertise. 

 

The Board is responsible for setting and formulating economic, social and environmental direction through 

strategic objectives and key policies, major plans of action, its risk policy, annual budgets and business plans. It 

ensures that the EDTEA’s performance objectives are achieved through the implementation of structured 

reporting systems which are used to monitor performance. 

 

BOARD STRUCTURE AND COMPOSITION 

The Board comprises of seven Trustees, comprising of six independent Trustees appointed by the MEC: EDTEA 

and the CEO who is a Trustee by virtue of his position. In making the appointments of the Independent Trustees, 

the MEC takes into consideration gender and demographic representation, KZN representation, as well as the 

appropriate collective skills required by the Board. The roles of the Chairperson and CEO are separately held to 

ensure a clear division of duties. The only change to the Board in the 2015/16 financial year was the resignation 

of Ms Zodwa Mbele as at 31 March 2016. Trustees are expected to keep themselves abreast of changes and 

trends in the business environment and markets, which shall include changes and trends in the economic, 

political, social, technology and legal climate generally. The Board holds at least 4 meetings per year as well as 

a strategic planning session. Special meetings are convened as required. 

 

The table below details the Board of Trustees, the number of years’ service and attendance at the 2015/16 Board 

meetings. 

Board of Trustees as at 31 March 2016  

Name Position Number of years’ service Board Meetings 

Held 

Attendance at 

Board Meetings 

Ms Dudu Hlatshwayo Chairman 2 years 2 months 9 9 

Mr Siddiq Adam Trustee/CEO 2 years 2 months (as a 

Trustee) 

 

9 9 

Mr Helge Switala Deputy Chairman 2 years 2 months 9 9 

Ms Delia Jay  Trustee 2 years 2 months 9 9 

Mr Imtiaz Vally Trustee 2 years 2 months 9 9 

Ms Phumzile Langeni Trustee 2 years 2 months 9 7 

Ms Zodwa Mbele* Trustee  1 year 10 months 9 9 

*resigned as at 31 March 2016 

 

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT 

King III requires that the performance of the board, its sub-committees and individual members be evaluated 

on an annual basis. A formal independently conducted Board evaluation was performed in the 2015/16 financial 

year. The final report was presented to the Board in July 2015 which concluded that there is consensus between 
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BOARD EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED) 

the Trustees that the Board conducts its business professionally in an atmosphere of good governance with the 

business of the Board being conducted openly and transparently.  

 

The Board evaluations for the 2016/17 financial year will be conducted internally by way of self-assessment 

questionnaires.  

 

DELEGATED POWER OF AUTHORITY 

The Board is authorised to form standing and ad hoc committees to assist it in the execution of its duties, powers 

and authorities. The Delegation of Authority Framework document is reviewed annually and approved by the 

board. The terms of reference of each committee clearly differentiates, where appropriate, between powers 

that are delegated to committees for decision by the committee concerned and those in respect of which the 

board retains decision making powers but requires a recommendation from the committee concerned. 

Delegation of authority to board committees or management does not mitigate or discharge the Board and its 

Trustees of their duties and responsibilities, or ultimately their accountability. 

 

REMUNERATION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

The Trustees are remunerated for the meetings they attend at rates approved by the EDTEA. No performance-

based remuneration are paid to Trustees. 

 

BOARD COMMITTEES 

The Board has established three standing committees to assist it in exercising its authority. In line with the 

principles of King III, all committees of the Board have formally approved terms of reference to ensure effective 

decision-making, monitoring and reporting. The terms of reference are reviewed at least annually, along with 

the overall effectiveness and performance of the committees.   

 

The Board committees are the Audit and Risk Committee, the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee 

and the Investment Committee. 

 

The Audit and Risk Committee and the Investment Committee are each chaired by an independent non-

executive Trustee and the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee is chaired by an independent, non-

executive who is not a Trustee. 
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED) 
Committee Key Responsibilities Membership Meetings Held Attendance 

Audit and Risk 

Committee 

- Monitor adequacy of financial controls 

and reporting 

- Reviews audit plans and adherence to 

these by external and internal auditors; 

- Ascertains the reliability of the audit; 

- Ensures that financial reporting complies 

with IFRS and the PFMA; 

- Ensures that there are effective 

measures in place on Information 

Technology risks as they relate to 

financial reporting; 

- Makes recommendations on all financial 

matters; 

- Oversees the compliance and risk 

reporting; 

- Assesses the effectiveness of the finance 

function and internal audit; 

- Appoints the internal auditor and 

recommends the external auditor to the 

Board 

Mr Imtiaz Vally  

(Chairman) 

4 4 

Ms Delia Jay  

(Trustee)  

4 4 

Ms Zodwa Mbele 

(Trustee) 

4 

 

 

4 

Human Resources & 

Remuneration 

Committee 

- The Human Resources and Remuneration 

Committee exercises oversight of matters 

related to human resource management 

and succession planning; develops and 

implements the human resource 

strategy; assists the Board in the 

development of remuneration policies, 

incentive policies and performance 

targets as well as specific remuneration 

levels for KGFT. 

Ms Getty Simelane 

(Chairman)  

5 5 

Mr Imtiaz Vally  

(Member)  

5 5 

Ms Delia Jay   

(Member) 

5 5 

Investment 

Committee 

- Devising the Investment, Equity, 

Guarantee, Credit, Equity Pricing and 

Valuation, and Loan Pricing Policies which 

shall consist of processes and procedures 

to be applied to the Investments; 

- Evaluating, assessing and approving the 

creditworthiness of any investment 

identified by the Executive Management 

- Monitoring of investment mandates 

Mr Helge Switala 

(Chairman) 

3 3 

Ms Phumzile Langeni 

(Member) 

3 2 

Mr Imtiaz Vally 

(Member*) 

3 3 

Ms Dinao Lerutla 

(Independent 

Representative) 

3 2 

Ms Khetiwe 

Tshabalala 

(Independent 

Representative*) 

3 3 

*Following the repayment of the Lenders (Standard Bank and DBSA) in March 2015, the members of the Investment Committee 

changed as the Lender representatives were replaced with Mr Imtiaz Vally and Ms Khetiwe Tshabalala. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL ENVIRONMENT 

Responsibility for the systems of internal financial and operational control has been delegated to the Audit and 

Risk Committee. KGFT’s governance principles on ethical behaviour, legislative compliance and sound 

accounting practice lay the foundation for its internal control processes, while enterprise-wide risk management 

approach and risk strategy adopted by the Board form the framework for internal control. Executive 

management is accountable for determining the adequacy, extent and operation of control systems. 

 

The Internal Audit function is responsible for providing independent, objective assurance on KGFT’s system of 

governance, risk management and internal control. KGFT has outsourced its internal audit function to Deloitte 

who have produced a rolling three-year strategic internal audit plan based on its assessment of KGFT’s key risk 

areas, having regard to its current operations, those proposed in its corporate plan and KGFT’s risk management 

strategy. Internal audit provide independent assurance to the Board and management on the effectiveness of 

the internal control system. Members of the Audit and Risk Committee review the work of Internal Audit and 

the internal auditors have unfettered access to the Chairman of the committee and the Board to ensure the 

escalation of any significant audit matters requiring immediate Board attention. A review of the performance of 

the internal audit function is undertaken on an annual basis. 

 

COMBINED ASSURANCE 

Principle 3.5 of the King III Report introduced combined assurance as a recommended governance practice. The 

recommendation was made following a general understanding that more can be done to improve assurance 

coverage and quality through better co-ordination of the assurance providers. While combined assurance offers 

numerous benefits, it is considered one of the biggest challenges facing businesses and organisations in adopting 

King III. 

 

Management has developed a Combined Assurance Model Framework which sets out the combined assurance 

objectives as well as identifying KGFT’s assurance providers and setting out the roles and responsibilities of each. 

The framework also details the seven steps for combined assurance implementation which include: identifying 

assurance drivers; assessing potential for combined assurance; identifying assurance providers; risk mapping; 

developing a combined assurance plan; application of the combined assurance plan; and reporting on combined 

assurance. A combined assurance plan will be developed by KGFT and submitted to the Audit and Risk 

Committee in the 2016/17 financial year.  
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED) 

 

ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 

KGFT is committed to eradicating all forms of fraud and corruption. The PFMA requires that KGFT has in place a 

Fraud Prevention Plan which is approved by the Board and submitted to EDTEA with KGFT’s Corporate Plan on 

an annual basis. 

 

Measures in place to ensure that the risk of fraud is minimised include: 

 The provision of fraud awareness training; 

 Adherence to a culture of zero tolerance with regards to fraud and thef 

 Effective management and implementation of policies aimed at governing staff behaviour including 

the Business Code of Conduct and Ethics and KGFT’s Fraud Prevention Plan; 

 Conducting fraud risk assessments to highlight KGFT’s fraud risks, identify the controls in place to 

mitigate those risks and formulate action plans in terms of identified gaps or weaknesses; and 

 An independent “whistle-blowing” service, enabling staff and other stakeholders to report fraud via a 

tip off line. 

 

KGFT’s management and employees have signed and committed to an anti-fraud declaration as a pledge to zero 

tolerance against fraud and corruption. Fraud risk is reported upon at each meeting of the Audit and Risk 

Committee. 

 

There have been no incidents of fraud and corruption reported in the period either directly to management or 

via the whistle blowers hotline. 

 

ETHICS AND MANAGING CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

KGFT has a Business Code of Conduct and Ethics in place which is intended to promote and enforce ethical 

behaviour and enhance professionalism in dealing with suppliers, customers, business partners, stakeholders, 

government and society at large.  

 

The Board conforms to KGFT’s Declaration of Interest Policy Framework which re-enforces the Trust’s 

commitment to ensure that the organisation is managed ethically and transparently in a manner that benefits 

all of its stakeholders. Declarations of Interest are made on an annual basis and the Board, sub-committee 

members and the executive management are required to disclose any potential conflicts at meetings of the 

Board and its committees. KGFT also has a gifts and inducement policy which requires that any gifts, given or 

received, over R500 are approved by the executive management and declared to the compliance function. 

 

PROMOTION OF ACCESS TO INFORMATION  

KGFT is committed to complying with the Promotion of Access to Information Act (PAIA) which supports 

important principles of good governance, transparency and accountability. The PAIA of 2000 gives effect to the 

constitutional right of access to any information held by the State and any information that is held by  
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PROMOTION OF ACCESS TO INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

 

another person and that is required for the exercise or protection of any rights. KGFT has a PAIA Manual available 

on its website which details the process to be followed to request information. KGFT reports to the  

 

South African Human Rights Commission on an annual basis in terms of section 32 of the PAIA stating how many 

requests for information have been received from the public. There were no requests for information received 

in the 2015/16 financial year. 

 

 
CSI Initiative - Garden tunnels at the Hope Centre in Amaoti: KGFT Staff assisted by Crossroads personnel erected two 

vegetable tunnels on 17 November 2015 at the Crossroads Hope Centre. The Tunnel Garden produces exceptional quality 

vegetables with minimum to average cost as compared to traditional ground gardening. The tunnels are wind proof and 

offers an excellent shelter for veggie’s and creates a micro climate that creates a faster growth of your vegetables.   
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 REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE     

   
The Audit and Risk Committee is a committee of the Board of Trustees and it assists the Board through advising 

and making submissions on financial reporting, oversight of the risk management process and internal financial 

controls, external and internal audit functions and statutory and regulatory compliance of the Trust. 

             

The Audit and Risk Committee has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit and Risk 

Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this Charter and has discharged all its 

responsibilities as contained therein.         

   

The Audit and Risk Committee members and their attendance at meetings are as follows: 

Name of Audit and Risk Committee 

Member 

Type of 

Appointment 

Date of 

Appointment 

Number of 

Meetings held 

Number of Meetings 

attended 

Mr IAS Vally (Chairman) Trustee 2013-11-01 4 4 

Ms D Jay Trustee 2013-11-01 4 4 

Ms Z Mbele* Trustee 2014-06-03 4 4 

* Tendered resignation – 31 March 2016  

 

The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, Executives of the Trust and representatives from the 

external and internal auditors attend the committee meetings by invitation only.  The internal and external 

auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit and Risk Committee Chairman. 

 

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 

The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 51(1)(a) 

of the PFMA and Treasury Regulations section 21.1.10(b) and (c) and section 27.1.7. 

 

Section 51(1)(a) of the PFMA states the following: 

The Accounting Authority must ensure that the public entity has and maintains –  

(i) Effective, efficient and transparent systems of financial and risk management and internal control; 

(ii) A system of internal audit under the control and direction of an Audit and Risk Committee complying 

with and operating in accordance with regulations and instructions prescribed in terms of section 76 

and 77; and 

(iii)  An appropriate procurement and provisioning system which is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive 

and cost-effective. 
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE (CONTINUED) 
 

STATUTORY DUTIES 

In execution of its statutory duties during the past financial year, the Audit and Risk Committee: 

 Believes that the appointment of Auditor General – South Africa (AGSA) as auditor complies with the 

relevant provisions of the Trust Property Control Act and the Public Finance Management Act; 

 Determined the fees to be paid to the AG as disclosed in note 17 of the financial statements; 

 Determined in terms of engagement of the external auditor; 

 Reviewed the quality of financial information; 

 Reviewed the Integrated Report and Financial Statements; 

 Received no complaints relating to the accounting practices and internal/external audit of KGFT, the 

content or auditing of its financial statements, the internal financial controls of the Trust, and any other 

related matters; 

 Made the submission to the Board matters concerning the Trust’s accounting policies, financial control, 

records and reporting; and 

 Concurs that the adoption of the going concern basis of preparation in the financial statements is 

appropriate. 

 

OVERSIGHT OF RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Audit and Risk Committee has satisfied itself that the following areas have been appropriately addressed: 

 Financial reporting risks; 

 Internal financial controls; 

 Fraud risk as it relates to financial reporting; and 

 IT risk as it related to financial reporting. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The Audit and Risk Committee has: 

 Reviewed the effectiveness of the Trust’s system of internal financial controls including receiving 

assurance from management, internal audit and external; 

 Reviewed significant issues raised by the internal and external audit process; and 

 Reviewed policies and procedures for preventing and detecting fraud. 

 

No significant cases of misconduct or fraud or any other unethical activity by employees of the Trust has been 

brought to the attention of the Audit and Risk Committee.  

 

Based on the processes and assurances obtained, KGFT believes that significant internal financial controls are 

effective. 
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE (CONTINUED) 
 

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE 

The Audit and Risk Committee has: 

 Reviewed the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations. 

 

EXTERNAL AUDIT 

The Audit and Risk Committee has: 

 Reviewed the external audit scope to ensure that the critical areas of the business are being addressed; 

and 

 Reviewed the external auditors report including issues arising out of the external audit. 

 

The external auditors have furthermore provided written assurance to the Audit and Risk Committee that they 

have remained independent of KGFT. 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

The Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed the activities of the internal audit function to determine its 

effectiveness and to ensure that no unjustified restrictions or limitations were made.  

 

The Committee has also reviewed the internal audit reports, including the responses of management to issues 

raised therein.   

 

Based on the scope and results of their work, and subject to the limitations of sampling and audit risk, internal 

audit is of the opinion that key controls implemented by management appear to indicate that an adequate 

control framework is in place, however; implementation requires continuous attention in certain key control 

activities to provide reasonable assurance that residual risk areas reported are properly mitigated and 

controlled. 

 

THE QUALITY OF IN-YEAR MANAGEMENT AND MONTHLY AND QUARTERLY REPORTS SUBMITTED IN 

TERMS OF THE PFMA 

The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of monthly and quarterly reports 

prepared and issued by the Board of Trustees and management of the Trust during the year under review. 

 

FINANCE FUNCTION 

The Audit and Risk Committee believes that the Chief Financial Officer, Mr I Abdoola, possesses the appropriate 

expertise and experience to meet his responsibilities in that position. The Committee is furthermore satisfied 

with the expertise and adequacy of resources within the finance function.   

 

Based on the processes and assurances obtained, the Audit and Risk Committee believes that the accounting 

practices are effective. 
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE (CONTINUED) 
 

The Audit and Risk Committee has discussed the conclusions of the External Auditors on the annual financial 

statements, read together with the report of the External Auditors and recommend these to the Board of 

Trustees for acceptance. 

 

On behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee 

 

 
____________________________________ 

Mr IAS Vally 

Chairman: Audit and Risk Committee  
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 TRUSTEES RESPONSIBILITY AND APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The Trustees are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of KZN Growth 

Fund Trust, comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the statements of 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial 

statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, and the 

Trustee’s Report, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the financial 

provisions of the Trust Deed.  In addition the Trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees Report. 

 

To enable the Trustees to meet these responsibilities: 

 The Board and management set standards and management implements systems of internal controls and 

accounting and information systems aimed at providing reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded 

and the risk of fraud, error or loss is reduced in a cost effective manner. These controls, contained in 

established policies and procedures, include the proper delegation of responsibilities and authorities within 

a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties. 

 The internal audit function, which operates unimpeded and independently from operational management, 

and has unrestricted access to the Audit and Risk Committee, appraises and, when necessary, recommends 

improvements in the system of internal controls and accounting practices, based on audit plans that take 

cognisance of the relative degrees of risk of each function or aspect of the business. 

 The Audit and Risk Committee, together with the Internal Audit department, plays an integral role in matters 

relating to financial and internal control, accounting policies, reporting and disclosure. 

 

To the best of our knowledge and belief, based on the above, the Trustees are satisfied that no material 

breakdown in the operation of the system of internal control and procedure has occurred during the year under 

review. 

 

The Trust consistently adopts appropriate and recognised accounting policies and these are supported by 

reasonable judgements and estimates on a consistent basis and provides additional disclosures when 

compliance with the specific requirements in accordance with IFRS are insufficient to enable users to understand 

the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Trust’s financial position and financial 

performance. 

 

The Trust’s responsibility also includes maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective system of risk 

management.  All employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring that the Trust’s 

practices are concluded in a manner, which in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. 

 

The Trustees have made an assessment of the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern and have included 

appropriate disclosure in the Trustee’s report.   
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TRUSTEES RESPONSIBILITY AND APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(CONTINUED) 
 

The basis of accounting has been adopted by the Board of Trustees after having made enquiries of management 

and given due consideration to information presented to the Board, including budgets and cash flow projections 

for the year ahead and key assumptions and accounting policies relating thereto.  Accordingly, the Trustees have 

no reason to believe that KGFT will not continue as a going concern in the year ahead. 

 

APPROVAL OF AUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The annual financial statements of KZN Growth Fund Trust, as identified in the first paragraph, were approved 

by the Board of Trustees on 20 July 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: 

     
____________________________    ______________________________ 

Ms D Hlatshwayo    Mr S Adam 

Chairman of KGFT    Chief Executive Officer 
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Preparer 

The audited annual financial statements were internally compiled under the supervision of: 

Mr I Abdoola 

Chief Financial Officer 
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TRUSTEE’S REPORT 

For the year ended 31 March 2016 
 

The Trustee’s have pleasure in presenting this report as part of the audited financial statements of KZN Growth 

Fund Trust (“Trust”) for the year ended 31 March 2016. 

 

1. Nature of Business 

The Trust was registered with the Pietermaritzburg High Court on 22 October 2007. The main objectives 

of the Trust are to provide support for creating an enabling environment for activities that create jobs 

and accelerate the economic development of the KZN Province whilst promoting Broad Based Black 

Economic Empowerment.   

 

2. Business Model 

The Trust was set up in 2008 as an initiative of the KZN Government’s Department of Economic 

Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs (EDTEA) to administer the KZN Growth Fund (“KGF 

Debt Fund 1”). The Fund was set up as a 15 year R1,087.5bn closed debt fund with a commitment period 

of 6 years, structured as a unique public-private partnership between the EDTEA (R362,5m), Standard 

Bank of South Africa (SBSA – R200m), Infrastructure Finance Corporation (INCA – R300m) and the 

Development Bank of Southern Africa (DBSA – R225m). The commitment period ended in August 2015. 

KGF Debt Fund 1, which became operational in 2009, financed medium to large scale sustainable private 

sector projects throughout the KwaZulu-Natal (“KZN”) province. The fund size reduced to R787.5m due 

to the exit of INCA from the fund in November 2013 because of a change in its business model. This 

initiative was a first in South Africa, aimed at creating sustainable economic development, job creation, 

broad based black economic empowerment (B-BBEE) and reducing inequality in KZN.  
 

The KGF Debt Fund 1 was a closed debt fund and in order to give effect to new funds and products 

(restricted under KGF Debt Fund 1), the Trust unencumbered its capital from the existing security in the 

KGF Debt Fund 1 by prepayment of the existing exposures and cancellation of all debt facilities on 31 

March 2015. The Trust now caters for both a debt and an equity fund and is able to bring on board 

additional investors to participate in either.   

      

3.  Financial results for the year ended 31 March 2016   

The financial results of the Trust are fully disclosed on pages 83 to 126.   

 

The key financial indicators for the year under review are:  

 Net operating income amounts to R108.2m (2015: R75.2m) and the net surplus in the current year 

amounts to R78.5m (2015: R50.5m). The majority of the interest received arose from project loans and 

advances.    

 Assets under management increased from R7654m in 2015 to R1,089.0m as at 31 March 2016.  
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 TRUSTEE’S REPORT (CONTINUED) 

 

4.   High level overview of the performance of the Trust      

 

The year commenced with the expansion of the Trust’s product offering, to include equity as a financing 

instrument. The introduction of equity as part of the product offering followed observations that a 

number of projects in the province required equity capital to unlock them. 

 

The Trust approved projects for funding during the period amounting to R226m in the transport and 

logistics (R8m), telecommunications (R100m) and healthcare (R118m) sectors.   

 

Disbursements during the period amounted to R136.8m, and was down by 53% when compared to the 

prior comparative period. This is partly attributed to delays in implementation of some of the approved 

projects and extended development periods for other projects.  

      

5.   Capital Contribution and Reserves 

       

The Trusts equity instruments primarily includes government funding. This funding represents capital 

provided by the Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs and remains 

part of the permanent capital of the Trust.   

 

Prior to the unencumbering of government funding within the closed Debt Fund, contributions received 

from the beneficiary were classified as a liability. Capital undrawn (R44m as at 31 March 2015) was 

recorded as deferred funds and transferred to capital to the extent of exposures within projects. This 

included Fund II funds (R360m) which were received from the beneficiary for the purposes of equity 

investments, however was ring-fenced due to the security structure with the previous lenders. The 

approval of the Evolution Strategy in April 2015 resulted in the capitalisation of all funds to be utilised 

for Debt, Equity and Guarantee products 

   

As part of the implementation of the strategy, general reserve funding (R104m) which was previously 

provided by the KwaZulu Natal Provincial Government (relating to the settlement subsidy received for 

the repayment of a previous lender (INCA) on their exit from the Fund as well benefits received as a 

result of the waiver of amounts payable on the acquisition of the net assets of the Fund Manager) was 

capitalised to be utilised for Project disbursements. Futhermore, the Trust sought to capitalise additional 

funds from retained earnings amounting to R78m to capital. In addition, capital available for projects 

was increased due to the annual allocation received from EDTEA amounting to R95m. This resulted in 

total capital available for projects of R1bn. 
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TRUSTEE’S REPORT (CONTINUED) 

       

6. Board of Trustees and its Sub-Committees         

In accordance with the Trust Deed there shall, at all times, be 7 Trustees, comprising of 6 independent 

Non-Executive Trustees nominated and appointed by the Government acting through the Department 

of Economic Development, Tourism & Environmental Affairs and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) by 

reason of appointment as CEO.   

 

The Trust has three Sub-Committees namely the Investment Committee, the Audit and Risk Committee 

and the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee.   

 

The Trustees and other committee members in office during the year under review are as follows: 

Name of the Member  
 Date of 

Appointment  
 Date of 

Resignation  
 Board of 
Trustees  

 
Investment 
Committee  

 Audit & Risk 
Committee  

 HR 
Committee  

 TOTAL NUMBER OF MEETINGS   8   3   4   6  

 Ms D Hlatshwayo                   
(Chairperson of Trust)    2013-11-01   N/A   7   N/A   N/A   N/A  

 Mr H. Switala                                   
(Deputy Chairman of Trust)               
(Chairman of Investment 
Committee)   2013-11-01   N/A   8   3   N/A   N/A  

 Mr M.S.A. Badurally Adam                
(Chief Executive Officer)    2013-11-01   N/A   8   3   4   6  

 Ms D.Jay   2013-11-01   N/A   8   1   4   6  

 Ms P. Langeni   2013-11-01   N/A   6   2   N/A   N/A  

 Mr I.A.S. Vally                            
(Chairman of Audit & Risk 
Committee)   2013-11-01   N/A   7   3   4   N/A  

 Ms Z. Mbele   2014-06-03   2016-03-31    8   N/A   4   N/A  

 Ms K. Tshabalala   2015-06-01  N/A   1   3   N/A   N/A  

 Ms D. Lerutla   2013-11-01  

 
N/A   2   2   N/A   N/A  

 Ms K.P.M.Simelane       
(Chairperson of HR 
Committee)   2013-11-01  

 
 

N/A   7   N/A   N/A   6  

     

The Trustees’ and other committee members’ emoluments are determined by EDTEA and are set out in note 18 

of the financial statements.  The Trustees’ relationship with related parties are disclosed in note 25 of the 

financial statements. 
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TRUSTEE’S REPORT (CONTINUED) 

 

7. Going concern 

The Trustees have no reason to believe that the Trust will not be a going concern in the future, based 

on the Trust’s funding forecasts and projected strategic plans. 

 

8. Auditors 

  The Auditor General South Africa serves as independent auditor as appointed by the Trustees. 

 

9. Subsequent Events 

No events were identified subsequent to year end that requires adjustment or disclosure in the financial 

statements. 
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Report of the Auditor-General to the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Legislature on KZN Growth 

Fund Trust 

Report on the financial statements 

 

Introduction  

1. I have audited the financial statements of the KZN Growth Fund Trust set out on pages XX to XXX, which 

comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the statement of other comprehensive 

income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, as well as the 

notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

  

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements 

2. The board of trustees, which constitutes the accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair 

presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable 

the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

Auditor-general’s responsibility 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my 

audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with 

ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the trust’s preparation 

and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the trust’s 

internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the financial statements.  

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit 

opinion 

 

Opinion  

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 

KZN Growth Fund Trust as at 31 March 2016 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then 

ended, in accordance with IFRS. 

 

Internal control 

7. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements. I did not identify any 

significant deficiencies in internal control. 



   
 

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 82 

 
 

Other report 

Audit related services and special audit 

8. An agreed-upon procedures engagement was performed on the reported information relating to the 

performance of the trust against predetermined objectives. The reported performance was evaluated 

against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. The report covered the period 1 April 2015 to 31 

March 2016, and was issued to the trustees on 20 July 2016. 

 

 

 

Pietermaritzburg 

18 July 2016 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

As at 31 March 2016 
 

 NOTES 2016 2015  

  R R  

Assets     

     

Non-current assets  490 951 638 368 380 531  

Property, plant and equipment 2 1 506 117 1 811 977  

Intangible assets 

Equity Investments 

3 

4 

48 060 

48 015 387 

469 254 

- 

 

Loans and advances 5 421 382 074 346 099 300  

Cash and cash equivalents 6 20 000 000 20 000 000  

     

Current assets  603 548 109 593 667 653  

Cash and cash equivalents 6 560 699 100 574 784 041  

Trade and other receivables 7 2 129 856 1 565 951  

Short term portion of loans and advances 5 40 719 153 17 317 661  

     

Total assets  1 094 499 747 962 048 184  

     

Equity and Liabilities     

     

Equity     

     

Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders  1 089 988 399 511 629 944  

Capital contribution 8 1 000 000 010 317 636 171  

General reserve 8 - 104 319 277  

Accumulated surplus  89 988 389 89 674 496  

     

Liabilities     

     

Non-current liabilities  115 238 448 081 592  

Deferred funds 9 - 447 783 660  

Finance lease liability 10 6 326 19 960  

Long term portion of provisions 11 108 912 277 972  

Loans and borrowings 12 - -  

     

Current liabilities  4 396 110 2 336 648  

Trade and other payables 13 3 874 172 1 799 032  

Short term portion of finance lease liability 10 16 007 106 864  

Short term portion of provisions 11 505 931 430 752  

Short term portion of loans and borrowings 12 - -  

     

Total equity and liabilities  1 094 499 747 962 048 184  
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

For the Year ended 31 March 2016 
 

 NOTES 2016 2015 

  R R 

    

Interest income 14 128 714 899 55 126 448 

Interest expense 15 (1 250 424) (3 136 157) 

    

Net margin  127 464 475 51 990 291 

    

Raising fee  - 900 000 

(Provision)Reversal of provision for doubtful debts  5 (19 286 073) 22 313 332 

    

Net operating income  108 178 402 75 203 623 

    

Other income 16 59 558 3 363 209 

    

Operating expenses 17 (29 743 344) (27 994 932) 

    

Operating surplus for the year  78 494 616 50 571 900 

    

Other comprehensive income for the year  - - 

    

Total comprehensive income  78 494 616 50 571 900 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

For the Year ended 31 March 2016 
 

  Capital 

contributio

ns 

Debt 

service 

reserve 

General 

Reserve 

Accumulated 

Surplus 

 

Total 

 Not

es 

R R R R R 

       

2015       

Balance at 1 April 2014  72 636 171 9 580 958 104 319 277 29 521 638 216 058 044 

Release of debt service reserve on final 

settlement of lenders 

  

- 

 

(9 580 958) 

 

- 

 

9 580 958 

 

- 

Capital disbursed to projects  245 000 000 - - - 245 000 000 

Total comprehensive income  - - - 50 571 900 50 571 900 

Balance at 31 March 2015  317 636 171 - 104 319 277 89 674 496 511 629 944 

       

2016       

Balance at 1 April 2015  317 636 171 - 104 319 277 89 674 496 511 629 944 

Release of deferred funds (Fund II) to capital  9 360 000 000 - - - 360 000 000 

Capital disbursed to projects (Fund I) to capital 9 44 863 839 - - - 44 863 839 

Capital contribution - EDTEA  95 000 000 - - - 95 000 000 

Transfer of previously recognised general reserve 9 104 319 277 - (104 319 277) - - 

Capitalisation of accumulated surplus 9 78 180 723 - - (78 180 723) - 

Total comprehensive income  - - - 78 494 616 78 494 616 

Balance at 31 March 2016  1 000 000 010 - - 89 988 389 1 089 988 399 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Year ended 31 March 2016 
 

 NOTES 2016 2015 

  R R 

    

Cash generated by operating activities  57 356 901 24 831 135 

Cash outflows from operating activities 19 (27 187 753) (27 159 156) 

Interest received 14 85 795 078 55 126 448 

Interest paid 15 (1 250 424) (3 136 157) 

    

Cash utilised in investing activities  (48 377 241) (711 947) 

Purchase of fixed assets 2 (351 228) (648 192) 

Purchase of intangible assets 3 (10 626) (65 857) 

Increase in Equity Investments 4 (48 015 387) - 

Proceeds on sale of assets  - 2 102 

    

Cash utilised in financing activities  (23 064 601) (37 334 877) 

Increase in capital contribution 8 95 000 000 245 000 000 

Decrease in deferred funds 9 - (84 008 895) 

Decrease in long term borrowings  - (59 244 580) 

Increase in loans and advances 5 (117 970 339) (139 032 816) 

Decrease in finance lease 10 (94 262) (48 586) 

    

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (14 084 941) (13 215 689) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 6 594 784 041 607 999 730 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 6 580 699 100 594 784 041 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 31 March 2016 
          

1 Accounting policies         

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 

below.  These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

         

           

1.1 Reporting entity         

KwaZulu-Natal Growth Fund Trust (the “Trust”) is a Trust domiciled in South Africa.  It was established 

in accordance with the Trust Deed, registered by the High Court in Pietermaritzburg on 22 October 2007 

and as duly amended by the revised Trust Deed as registered in July 2015. 

    

The audited financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees at their meeting held on 20 

July 2016.         

           

1.2 Basis of Preparation         

           

1.2.1 Basis of Preparation        

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis utilising the historical cost 

concept except for financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss which are measured at 

amortised cost. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that 

the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities will occur in the ordinary course of business.  

          

1.2.2 Functional and presentation currency        

The financial statements are presented in South African rand, which is the Trust’s functional currency. 

 

1.2.3 Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements of the Trust as at and for the year ended 31 March 2016 have been prepared 

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the financial provisions of the Trust 

Deed. 

 

1.2.4 Use of estimates and judgments        

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 

income and expenses.  Actual results may differ from these estimates.    

           

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors 

that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of 

making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from 

other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.   
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and 

future periods’ revisions affect both current and future periods.   

   

1.2.5 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions      

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 

carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year relate to the following: 

             

 Going concern        

Management has made an assessment of the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern and is 

satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, 

management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Trust’s 

ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on 

the going concern basis.          

 Impairment of loans and advances        

Loans and advances are stated after the deduction of provisions for credit impairment. Loans and 

advances are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence of 

impairment.  

 

Loans and advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred if there is objective evidence of 

impairment, resulting from one or more loss events that occurred after initial recognition, which 

indicates that it is probable, the Trust will be unable to realise all amounts due. The carrying amount of 

a financial asset identified as impaired is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount. The amount of 

the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the value of estimates future 

cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate ruling on the date of the review. 

 

The impairment of non-performing loans and advances is based on periodic evaluations of loans and 

advances and take account of past loss experience and the economic climate in which the borrowers 

operate. Once all reasonable attempts have been made at collection and there is no realistic prospect 

of recovering outstanding amounts, an advance is written off against the related impairment. Loans and 

advances impairments and any subsequent reversals thereof or recoveries of amounts previously 

written off are either charged or credited to the statement of comprehensive income.  

 

Valuation of financial instruments 

Valuation of equity instruments 

Equity investments are designed as held-to-maturity if they have fixed or determinable payments and 

fixed maturities that management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. All other 

equity investments are designated at fair value through profit and loss which is determined from  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 

observable market data in respect of similar financial instruments.  Where market observable data is 

not available, they are estimated based on appropriate assumptions.  

 

1.2.6 Changes in accounting policies        

Equipment is depreciated over its estimated useful lives taking into account residual values, where 

appropriate. The remaining useful lives of assets and residual values are assessed annually.  

    

1.3 Significant accounting policies        

          

1.3.1 Equipment        

Equipment is stated at cost. Cost includes all costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to working 

condition for their intended use. The assets are depreciated on a straight line basis at rates that will 

reduce the historical costs to estimated residual values over their anticipated useful lives. The residual 

value of assets is the estimated amount that the Trust would currently obtain from disposal of assets, 

after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, as if the asset was already at the age and in the condition 

expected at the end of its useful life.        

    

Equipment acquired under finance lease arrangements are capitalised. Such assets are depreciated on 

a straight line basis at rates considered appropriate to reduce the capitalised cost to estimated residual 

value over the anticipated useful lives of the assets. Lease finance charges are amortised over the 

duration of the finance leases using the effective interest rate method.    

           

A review of asset values, residual values and impairment is performed at the statement of financial 

position dates each year and adjusted, if appropriate. Impairment losses are determined as the excess 

of the carrying amount of items of property, plant and equipment over the recoverable amount and are 

charged to profit or loss.      

 

Depreciation has been provided on a straight line basis, based on the estimated useful lives of the assets 

as follows:   

    

 Leasehold improvements   5 years   

 Computer equipment   3 – 5 years    

 Office equipment    5 - 7 years   

 Furniture and fittings   6 – 8 years 

 Portable communication devices  2 years    

          

Subsequent expenditure incurred on items of property, plant and equipment is only capitalised to the 

extent that such expenditure enhances the value or previous capacity of those assets. Repairs and 

maintenance not deemed to enhance the economic benefits or service potential of items of  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 

property; plant and equipment are expensed as incurred. Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant 

and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amounts and are included 

in the profit and loss.        

  

1.3.2 Intangible assets        

Intangible assets, are recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity 

from the intangible assets and the costs of the intangible assets can be reliably measured.  

           

Intangible assets comprise computer software and work-in-progress. Intangible assets are recognised at 

cost.  The cost of an intangible asset acquired in a business combination is its fair value at the date of 

acquisition.  Intangible assets with a definite useful life are amortised using the straight-line method 

over their useful economic life, generally not exceeding 20 years. At each date of the statement of 

financial position, intangible assets are reviewed for indications of impairment or changes in estimated 

future economic benefits.  If such indications exist, the intangible assets are analysed to assess whether 

their carrying amount is fully recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount 

exceeds the recoverable amount.        

       

(a) Computer software and licenses         

Acquired computer software and licenses are capitalised as assets on the basis of the costs incurred to 

acquire and bring the specific software into use. Capitalised computer software is carried at cost less 

accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Computer software is tested annually for impairment 

or changes in estimated future benefits.      

 

Amortisation is calculated using the straight–line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to 

their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:  

 Computer software   2 years    

 Loan Management System  5 years    

          

(b)    System development costs        

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as and 

when incurred. Direct software development costs that enhance the benefits of computer software 

programs and are clearly associated with an identifiable and unique software system, which will be 

controlled by the Trust and has a probable benefit exceeding one year, are recognised as intangible 

assets.          

          

These costs are initially capitalised as work-in-progress up to the date of completion of project after 

which the asset is transferred to computer software and accounted for as per the computer software 

and licenses policy.   
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Management reviews the carrying value of capitalised work-in-progress on an annual basis, irrespective 

of whether there is an indication of impairment.      

           

Development costs are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:  

 It is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;  

 Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;    

 There is an ability to use or sell the software product;      

 It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits;

        

 Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell 

the software product are available;        

 The expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably 

measured.        

 

1.3.3 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill   

At the end of each reporting period, the Trust reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible 

assets in order to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an 

impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order 

to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the 

recoverable amount of individual assets, the Trust estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be 

identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are 

allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation 

basis can be identified.          

     

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for 

impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. 

            

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in 

use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that 

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for 

which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

   

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 

amount; the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a 

revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. 
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When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or  a cash-generating 

unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying 

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment 

loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)  in prior years. A reversal of an impairment 

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, 

in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.  

 
 

1.3.4 Financial instruments        

Financial instruments are initially recognised when the Trust becomes party to the contractual 

provisions of the relevant instrument, and are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, these instruments are measured as below.      
 

1.3.4.1 Financial assets        

The Trust classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, 

loans and receivables and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the 

financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial 

recognition and re-evaluate this designation at every reporting date.    
 

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading and those designated at fair value 

through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally 

for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated by management. Assets in this category 

are classified as current assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realised within 12 

months of the statement of financial position date.  

 

A financial asset is classified as at fair value through profit or loss due to the following: 

 It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would 

otherwise arise from measuring the asset or recognising the gains or losses on a different basis. 

 A portfolio of financial assets is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in 

accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy and information about the 

Trust is provided internally on that basis to key management personnel. 

 

Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial assets are measured at fair value basis on annual basis, 

in accordance with IAS39: Financial Instrument.  All related realised and unrealised gains and losses 

arising from changes in fair value are recognised in net gains from financial assets in the statement of 

comprehensive income.  
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(b) Loans and advances        

Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 

not quoted in an active market. Loans and advances are classified as “trade and other receivables” in 

the statement of financial position except for maturities greater than 12 months after the statement of 

financial position date which are classified as non-current assets.   
 

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets        

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not 

classified in any of the categories. They are included in non - current assets unless management intends 

to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the statement of financial position date. 

 

(d)   Held-to-maturity financial assets 

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments and fixed maturities that management has the positive intention and the ability to hold to 

maturity, other than those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.  Where the Trust sells more 

than insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets in a period, the entire category would be 

tainted or reclassified as available-for-sale and the difference between amortised cost and fair value 

would be accounted for in equity. 
 

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity includes shareholders’ loans under equity investments. 
 

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity financial assets are measured at amortised cost using 

the effective interest method, less any allowance for impairment. 

             

(e) Trade and other receivables        

Trade and other receivables are stated at amortised cost; which, due to their short term nature closely 

approximates their fair value; less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade 

receivables is established when there is evidence that the Trust will not be able to collect all amounts 

due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between 

the asset’s carrying amount and the value of estimates future cash flows, discounted at the effective 

interest rate, is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 

(f) Cash and cash equivalents        

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks, investments in money 

market instruments and accrued interest on investments outstanding at year end. Cash and cash 

equivalents are stated at amortised cost, which, due to their short term nature, closely approximates 

their fair value.  

  

Identification and measurement of impairment of financial assets    

Financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence 

of impairment. A financial asset is considered impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more 
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events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.  If any such indication 

exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.    

         

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the 

borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Trust 

on terms that the Trust would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter 

bankruptcy or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the 

payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults 

in the group.        

 

Loans and advances, receivables and held-to-maturity investment 

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 

amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 

Calculation of recoverable amount 

The recoverable amount of the held-to-maturity investments and loans and advances carried at 

amortised cost is calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the 

original effective interest rate (ie the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of these 

financial assets). 

 

Reversal of impairment 

An impairment loss in respect of a held-to-maturity financial asset or loans and advances measured at 

amortised cost is reversed through profit or loss if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount can 

be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. 

 

A reversal of impairment loss on equity investments is recognised in profit and loss. 

     

 Derecognition of financial assets        

Financial assets shall be derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets 

expire, or are transferred to another entity. If the Trust neither transfers nor retains substantially all the 

risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred assets, it recognises its retained 

interest in the asset and associated liability for the amounts it may have to pay. If the Trust retains 

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, it continues to 

recognise a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.     

          

1.3.4.2 Financial liabilities        

Payables are stated at amortised cost, which, due to their short term nature closely approximates their 

fair value.        
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Derecognition of financial liabilities        

Financial liabilities shall be derecognised only when the Trust’s obligations under the contract are 

discharged, cancelled or they expire.        

         

1.3.4.3 Specific instruments        

 

Capital contributions        

The Trusts equity instruments primarily includes  government funding. This funding represent capital 

provided by the Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs and remains 

part of the permanent capital of the Trust. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to 

equity.            

 

Prior to the unencumbering of government funding within the closed Debt Fund, contributions received 

from the beneficiary were classified as a liability. Capital undrawn was recorded as deferred funds and 

transferred to capital to the extent of exposures within projects. This included Fund II funds which were 

received from the beneficiary for the purposes of equity investments, however was ring-fenced due to 

the security structure with the previous lenders. The approval of the Evolution Strategy in April 2015 

resulted in the capitalisation of all funds to be utilised for Debt, Equity and Guarantee products. 

 

 Amortised cost measurement        

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is 

measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation 

using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the 

maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.    

 

Other financial liabilities        

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus transactional costs.  Subsequently, these 

items are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.  Interest expenses on these 

items are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the year and are included in finance 

costs. Net gains or losses represent gains and losses on derecognition and they are included in other 

income or other expenses.         

       

Offsetting        

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported on the statement of financial 

position where there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amount and there is an 

intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Income 

and expenses are offset only to the extent that their related instruments have been offset in the 

statement of financial position. 
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1.3.5 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets    

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Trust has a present legal or constructive 

obligation that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 

required to settle the obligation.  A provision for an onerous contract is recognised by the Trust when 

the expected benefits to be derived by the Trust from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of 

meeting its obligation under the contract.  An onerous contract is a contract in which the unavoidable 

costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be 

received under it. Contingent liabilities, which include certain guarantees other than financial 

guarantees, are possible obligations that arise from past events whose existence will be confirmed only 

by the occurrence, or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events; not wholly within the 

Trust’s control. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed in 

the notes to the financial statements unless they are remote. 

 

1.3.6 Revenue recognition        

Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration received or receivable in the ordinary course of the 

Trust’s business. Revenue is recognised when it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Trust 

and that these benefits can be reliably measured: 

        

(a) Interest income and expense        

Interest income and expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on an accrual 

basis using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate method is a method of 

calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating the interest 

income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 

discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument. When 

calculating the effective interest rate, the Trust estimates future cash-flows considering all contractual 

terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses. 

 

When non-performing financial assets have been impaired, interest income (as suspended interest) 

continues to be recognised to the extent that the asset is not impaired on the original effective interest 

rate. 

     

(b) Raising fee        

KGFT charges a raising fee of up to 2% on the amount advanced to projects. KGFT is entitled to this 

income, and recognise this income in the statement of comprehensive income on the first day that funds 

are disbursed to the qualifying projects.  

 

(c) Other income       

Other income consists of income generated from the sale of assets that are no longer in use to the entity 

to employees and any income from realisation of insurance claims. 
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1.3.7 Employee benefits        

         

(a) Short term employee benefits        

The cost of all short-term employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee 

renders the related service. 

  

(b) Other long term employee benefits - Long Service Award     

Employees employed on/before 31 March 2012 are entitled to a long term benefit based on various 

periods of long service to the Trust and accrues up to 31 March 2024. The long service award liability is 

calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The long service award 

liability is an unfunded liability in that there are no separate plan assets out of which obligations are to 

be settled. The amount recognised as a long service award liability is therefore the present value of the 

defined benefit obligation at the end of the reported period. Current service costs and interest costs are 

recognised as expenses. All actuarial gains and losses and past service costs are recognised immediately 

as expenses.        

 

1.3.8 Lease transactions        

         

(a) Operating lease        

Assets leased by the Trust under which all risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the 

lessor are classified as operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit & 

loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.     

        

(b) Finance lease        

Finance leases are capitalised as property, plant and equipment at the cash equivalent cost and a 

corresponding finance lease liability raised accordingly.  

      

1.3.9 Business combinations          

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration 

transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the 

acquisition date fair values of the assets transferred by the Trust, the liabilities incurred by the Trust to 

the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Trust in exchange for control 

of the acquirer. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

         

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at 

their fair value at the acquisition date. Business combination involving entities or businesses under 

common control is defined in IFRS3: Business Combinations as a business combination in which all of 

the combining entities or businesses ultimately are controlled by the same party or parties both before 

and after the combination and that control is not transitory.     
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Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from assets that are not capable of being 

individually identified and separately recognised in a business combination and is determined as the 

excess of the cost of acquisition over the group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, 

liabilities and contingent liabilities of the entity. If, after reassessment, the Trust’s interest in the net fair 

value of the acquiree’s identification assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the 

business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss.   

        

Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any 

accumulated impairment losses.        

 

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Trust’s cash-generating units 

expected benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has 

been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that 

the unit may be impaired. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent 

period.        

 

1.3.10 Events after the reporting period 

An event, which could be favourable, that occurs between the end of the reporting period and the date 

that the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

 

Adjusting event: An event after the reporting period that provides further evidence of conditions that 

existed at the end of the reporting period, including an event that indicates that the going concern 

assumption in relation to the whole or part of the entity is not appropriate. 

 

Non-adjusting event: An event after the reporting period that is indicative of the condition that arose 

after end of the reporting period. 

 

1.3.11 Determination of fair values 

A number of the Trust’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for 

both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for 

measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. Where applicable, further 

information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the note specific to 

that asset or liability.  
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1.3.11.1 Financial Instruments 

Some of the Trust’s financial instruments are measured at fair value, such as those that are designated 

by management as at fair value through profit and loss, available-for-sale and derivative financial 

instruments. 

 

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a 

current transaction between willing parties, other than a forced or liquidation sale. 

The method of determining the fair value of financial instruments can be split into the following 

categories: 

(a) Level 1 – unadjusted quoted prices in active markets where the quoted price is readily available 

and the price represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length 

basis. 

(b) Level 2 – Valuation techniques using market observable inputs. Such techniques may include: 

using recent arm’s-length market transactions, reference to the current fair value of similar 

instruments and discounted cash flow analysis, pricing models or other techniques commonly 

used by market participants. 

(c) Level 3 – Valuation techniques, as described in (b) above, for which not all inputs are market 

observable prices or rates. Such a financial instrument is initially recognised at the transaction 

price, which is the best indicator of fair value, although the value obtained from the relevant 

valuation model may differ. The difference between the transaction price and the model value, 

commonly referred to as day one profit and loss, is either amortised over the life of the 

transaction, deferred until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using market 

observable inputs, or realised through settlement. 

 

Equity investments 

The Trust as an Investor and Fund Manager to the KGF Equity Fund, has applied the exemption available 

in terms of IAS 28 as a result of the investments being purchased principally with an intention of being 

exited at an appropriate time. As such, after initial recognition of the investment, the Trust measures 

equity investments as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss as follows: 

Unquoted equity instruments whose fair values cannot be reliably measured are held at cost. If the 

market for an equity financial instrument is not active, the Trust uses a valuation technique to establish 

what the transaction price would be in an arm’s length transaction motivated by normal business 

considerations. 

 

The Trust uses valuation techniques in measuring equity instruments, including: 

 Price of recent investment, if available; 

 Discounted cash flow analysis based on free cash flows, earnings or dividends using market-

related adjusted discount rates; 

 Price earnings growth (PEG); and Option pricing models. 
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The Trust ensures that these valuation techniques: 

 Make maximum use of market inputs and rely as little as possible on entity-specific inputs; 

 Incorporate all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price; and 

 Are consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. 

 Equity investments held-to-maturity consists of shareholder loans. 

         

1.3.12 Taxation           

The income of the Trust is not subject to normal tax as its income is deemed to vest with its shareholder 

(entity of KwaZulu-Natal Government) which is exempt in terms of Section 10(1)(a) of the Income Tax Act. 

The Trust is however, subject to indirect taxes which comprise non-recoverable value added taxation 

(VAT) and skills development levies (SDL).   

 

1.3.12.1 Value Added Tax (“VAT”) 

 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of VAT, except: 

 Where the VAT incurred on an acquisition of an asset or services is not recoverable from the 

taxation authority, the VAT is recognised as part of the asset or expenditure; and 

 Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included. The net amount of VAT 

recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables 

in the statement of financial position.       

     

1.3.13 Other policies        

         

1.3.13.1 Related parties           

The following details are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements with regard to related parties:

       

 All related party names and details of the relationship     

 Transactions with related parties during the period      

 All balances outstanding with related parties at year end     

 Transactions and balances related to key management personnel    

 Compensation paid to key management personnel       

        

1.3.13.2 Commitments          

The amount of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment or major 

contracts, are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Future operating and finance lease 

commitments are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.    
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1.3.14 New standards and interpretations not yet effective     

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements of the Trust, for the year ended 31 March 2016, 

the following Standards and Interpretations applicable to the Trust were in issue but not effective: 

            

All standards and interpretations will be adopted at their effective dates.  The Trustees are of the opinion 

that these amendments will not have a material impact on the Trust’s annual financial statements. 

     

Standard/Interpretation Effective Date 

IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018* 

IFRS 15 (2014) Revenue from Contracts From Customers Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017* 

IFRS 16 (2015) Leases Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019* 

 

The Trustees are of the opinion that the impact of the application of the remaining Standards and 

Interpretations will be as follows:         

 

IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments 

IFRS 9 will be adopted by KGFT for the first time for its financial reporting period ending 31 March 2018.  

The standard will be applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions.  

 

IFRS 9 was revised using a 3 phase approach. 

 Phase 1 – Initial measurement and classification of financial assets 

Under IFRS 9 there are two options in respect of classification of financial assets, namely, financial assets 

measured at amortised cost or at fair value.  Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when the 

business model is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and when they give rise to cash 

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.  All other financial 

assets are measured at fair value.  Embedded derivatives are no longer separated from hybrid contracts 

that have a financial asset host. 

 

The impact on the financial statements for the Trust cannot be reasonably estimated as at 31 March 2016. 

 

Phase 2 – Impairment 

As part of IFRS 9 the IASB has introduced a new, expected loss impairment model that will require more 

timely recognition of expected credit losses.  Specifically, the new Standard requires entities to account 

for expected credit losses from when financial instruments are first recognised and it lowers the threshold 

for recognition of full lifetime expected losses. 

 

The impact on the financial statements for the Trust cannot be reasonably estimated as at 31 March 2016. 
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Phase 3 – Hedge accounting 

IFRS 9 introduces a substantially-reformed model for hedge accounting with enhanced disclosures about 

risk management activity. The new model represents a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that 

aligns the accounting treatment with risk management activities, enabling entities to better reflect these 

activities in their financial statements.  In addition, as a result of these charges, users of the financial 

statements will be provided with better information about risk management and the effect of hedge 

accounting on the financial statements. 

 

The impact on the financial statements for the Trust cannot be reasonably estimated as at 31 March 2016. 

 

IFRS 15 (2014) Revenue from Contracts from Customers 

IFRS 15 will be adopted by KGFT for the first time for its financial reporting period ending 31 March 2018.  

The standard will be applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions. 

 

The main objectives of this project were as follows: 

 To remove inconsistencies and weaknesses in existing revenue recognition standards by providing 

clear principles for revenue recognition in a robust framework. 

 To provide a single revenue recognition model which will improve comparability over a range of 

industries, companies and geographical boundaries. 

 To simplify the preparation of financial statements by reducing the number of requirements to 

which preparers must refer. 

 

IFRS 16 (2016) Leases 

IFRS 16 will be adopted by KGFT for the first time for its financial reporting period ending 31 March 2019. 

The standard will be applied retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions. 

 

The main objectives of this project were as follows: 

 To provide a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all 

leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. 

 To provide a lessee with an accurate measure of right of use similarly to other non-financial assets (such 

as property, plant and equipment) and lease liabilities similarly to other non-financial liabilities. 

 To require enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessors that will improve information disclosed about 

a lessor’s risk exposure, particularly to residual value risk. 

 

The impact on the financial statements for the Trust cannot be reasonable estimated as at 31 March 2016. 

 

Amendments to IFRS5, IFRS7, IFRS10, IFRS11, IFRS12, IFRS14, IAS1, IAS16, IAS19, IAS27, IAS28, IAS34 and IAS38 

and IAS41 are not applicable to the business of the Trust and will therefore have no impact on future financial 

statements. 
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2 Property, plant and Equipment         
 

  Computer 

Equipmen

t 

Office 

Equipmen

t 

Furniture 

& 

Fittings 

Leasehold 

Improvement 

Leased 

Assets 

Portable 

Communica

tion Devices 

Work in 

Progress 

 

Total 

2016 R R R R R R R R 

Cost    

Balance as at 01 April 2015 667 501 309 953 789 512 1 271 220 295 617 60 931 64 698 3 459 432 

Additions 81 486 244 779 - 16 906 - 12 652 (4 595) 351 228 

Disposals (112 792) (27 469) - - (295 617) (8 332) - (444 210) 

Transfer 46 691 13 412 - - - - (60 103) - 

Balance as at 31 March 2016 682 886 540 675 789 512 1 288 126 - 65 251 - 3 366 450 

    

Accumulated depreciation          

Balance as at 1 April 2015 (291 402) (146 145) (371 023) (587 510) (231 735) (19 640) - (1 647 455) 

Disposals 112 792 26 865 - - 288 790 8 332 - 436 779 

Transfer - - - - - - - - 

Depreciation for the year (159 070) (50 489) (99 216) (257 116) (57 055) (26 711) - (649 657) 

Balance as at 31 March 2016 (337 680) (169 769) (470 239) (844 626) - (38 019) - (1 860 333) 

         

Net book value as at 31 March 2016 345 206 370 906 319 273 443 500 - 27 232 - 1 506 117 

  

The lease for printing machines was cancelled as at 31 March 2016 and new printing machines were purchased. The carrying amount of the 

leased asset is R27 232 and the Trust’s obligations under finance leases (refer note 10) are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased 

assets. 

  

 Computer 

Equipment 

Office 

Equipmen

t 

Furniture 

& Fittings 

Leasehold 

Improvements 

Leased 

Assets 

Portable 

Communica

tion Devices 

Work in 

Progress 

 

Total 

2015 R R R R R  R R 

Cost         

Balance as at 1 April 2014 402 016 168 709 756 834 1 231 837 295 617 - - 2 855 013 

Additions 294 565 164 269 32 678 39 383 - 52 599 64 698 648 192 

Disposals (29 080) (14 693) - - - - - (43 773) 

Transfer - 8 332.46 - - - 8 332 - - 

Balance as at 31 March 2015 667 501 309 953 789 512 1 271 220 295 617 60 931 64 698 3 459 432 

 

Accumulated depreciation    

Balance as at 1 April 2014 (210 631) (135 140) (274 262) (336 219) (172 556) - - (1 128 808) 

Disposals 29 080 14 469 - - - - - 43 549 

Transfer - 1 822 - - - (1 822) - - 

Depreciation for the year (109 851) (27 296) (96 761) (251 291) (59 180) (17 817) - (562 196) 

Balance as at 31 March 2015 (291 402) (146 145) (371 023) (587 510) (231 736) (19 639) - ( 1 128          (1 647 455) 

         

Net book value as at 31 March 2015 376 099 163 808 418 489 683 710 63 881 41 292 64 698 1 811 977 
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The Trust had fully depreciated equipment with a historic cost amounting to R315 947 in the fixed assets register and these fully depreciated assets 

are still in use. The carrying amount of the leased asset is R105 174 and the Trust’s obligations under finance leases (refer to note 10) are secured by 

the lessor’s charge over the eased assets. 

 

3 Intangible assets 
 Computer 

Software 

Loan 

Management 

System 

Work 

In 

Progress 

Total 

 R R R R 

2016     

Cost     

Balance as at 1 April 2015 71 874 1 262 432 30 000 1 364 305 

Additions 10 626 - - 10 626 

Balance as at 31 March 2016 82 500 1 262 432 30 000 1 374 931 

 

Accumulated depreciation     

Balance as at 1 April 2015 (27 692) (867 359) - (895 051) 

Amortisation for the year (36 747) (395 073) - (431 820) 

Balance as at 31 March 2016 (64 439) (1 262 432) - (1 326 871) 

     

Net book value as at 31 March 2016 18 061 0 30 000 48 060 

     

KGFT had previously incurred costs for the customisation of a loan management system utilised for the Debt fund. Due to the change in 

the funding model to include additional products ie Equity and Guarantees, the Trust is in the process of identifying and documenting a 

revised system that will assist with all products as well as across the value chain ie from origination until exit of investments/repayments 

including document management. The Trust has therefore ceased to utilise the asset as it will require significant development based on 

the preliminary needs noted. The asset has therefore been impaired to a nil recoverable value and will be assessed for write off from 

the asset register based on finalisation of the review process. 

 

KGFT had developed a new logo and website during the 31 March 2015 financial year. The Trust has undertaken to protect the 

intellectual property rights relating thereto by registering the relevant trademarks.  As at 31 March 2016 the registration is still in process 

and the costs amounting to R30 000 have been classified as work in progress.  

 

2015     

Cost     

Balance as at 1 April 2014 100 540 1 262 432 24 322 1 387 294 

Additions 35 857 - 30 000 65 857 

Net work in progress transfer 24 322 - (24 322) - 

Disposals (88 846) -  (88 846) 

Balance as at 31 March 2015 71 873 1 262 432 30 000 1 364 305 

     

Accumulated depreciation     

Balance as at 1 April 2014 (88 605) (614 806) - (703 411) 

Disposals 88 846 - - 88 846 

Amortisation for the year (27 933) (252 553) - (280 486) 

Balance as at 31 March 2015 27 692 (867 359) - (895 051) 

     

Net book value as at 31 March 2015 44 181 395 073 30 000 469 254 



   
 

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 105 

 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

4 Equity Investment 

 

 
Equity Investments   2016 2015 

  Note R R 

KZN Growth Fund Trust’s equity investments consist of the following:     

Share Capital   16 800 000  

Shareholder loans   31 215 387  

   48 015 387 - 

Equity investment designated at fair value through profit or loss    

 Holding %    

KwaDukuza Private Hospital (Pty) Ltd 26%  16 800 000 - 

     

Movement in equity investment designated at fair value through 

profit or loss: 

    

Balance at the beginning of the year   - - 

Acquisitions   16 800 000  

Capital return   - - 

Fair value adjustment   - - 

Balance as at the end of the year   16 800 000 - 

     

Equity investment designated at fair value through  profit and loss consist of direct equity in ordinary shares in KwaDukuza Private 

Hospital (Pty)Ltd. KwaDukuza Private Hospital (Pty)Ltd is a company that will own and operate an acute private hospital with 70 beds 

and 3 theatres in the town of Stanger (also known as KwaDukuza). The hospital will have medical, surgical, maternity and high care 

wards and intensive care unit. The financial year end for KwaDukuza Private Hospital is June. The hospital is still at construction phase, 

and therefore a fair value measurement is not possible at the date of reporting. 

     

Equity investments – Shareholder loans     

     

Equity investments consist of shareholders loan to KwaDukuza Private Hospital issued during the current financial year. The Trust has 

not during the current financial year reclassified before maturity more than an insignificant amount of investments in relation to the 

total amount of held-to-maturity investments. 

     

Movement in Equity Investment – Shareholder loans:     

Balance as at 1 April   - - 

Add: drawdown   31 200 000 - 

Add: net interest earned   15 387 - 

Less: reclassification   - - 

Less: payments received   - - 

Less: Provision for impairment   - - 

   31 215 387 - 
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5 Loans and advances 
  2016 2015 

 Note R R 

Loans and advances net of provision for suspended interest   481 387 300 363 416 961 

Provision for doubtful debts  (19 286 073) - 

  462 101 227 363 416 961 

Less:  Short term portion of loans and advances  (40 719 153) (17 317 661) 

Non-current loans and advances  421 382 074 346 099 300 

    

The loans and advances bear interest at rates that are determined at JIBAR plus a margin and liquidity costs.  The margins 

range from 1.59% to 4.47%, based on the debt structuring and credit risk assessed for each loan.  Repayment periods also 

vary from monthly, quarterly and biannually as supported by the cash flows and the underlying projects. 

 

During the 2015 financial year, the Trust entered into a fixed term loan project agreement on one of its projects within the 

portfolio. The Trust does not speculate in interest rates. In order to manage the interest fluctuations, the Trust entered into 

hedge agreement with Rand Merchant Bank to eliminate the interest rate fluctuations as a result of the changes in the JIBAR 

rate.  

 

Movement in loans and advances:    

 

Balance as at 1 April 

  

363 416 961 

 

224 384 145 

Add: draw downs  120 000 000 291 999 500 

Add: net interest earned 14 46 208 824 22 002 156 

Add: reversal of suspended interest 14 - 7 835 315 

Less: provision for doubtful debts  (19 286 073)  

Less: payments received  (48 238 485) (182 804 155) 

Balance as at 31 March  462 101 227 363 416 961 

 

Movement in impairment of loans and advances: 

   

Balance as at 1 April  - (22 313 332) 

Release to the statement of comprehensive income  - 22 313 332 

Charge to statement of comprehensive income  (19 286 073) - 

Balance as at 31 March  (19 286 073) - 

    

A provision is raised during the current financial year due to one of the projects in the portfolio being unable to meet its 

repayment terms. The project has not been able to meet its loan repayments due to delays in receipt of funds from its major 

contract. A provision has been raised based on a shortfall of the estimated recoverable value of security valuation against the 

amounts outstanding as at 31 March 2016. 
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6 Cash and cash equivalents 
   2016 2015 

  Note R R 

Current Accounts   2 070 958 3 853 577 

Call Accounts   11 819 993 21 088 652 

Investment Accounts – Opex   47 585 149 - 

Investment Accounts – Swap security*   20 000 000 20 000 000 

Investment Accounts – Capital available Fund I-Debt Fund**   297 223 000 146 921 991 

Investment Accounts –Capital available FundII-Equity Fund***   202 000 000 402 919 821 

   580 699 100 594 784 041 

Less: Short term portion of cash and cash equivalents   560 699 100 594 784 041 

Non-Current Portion of Cash and cash equivalents   20 000 000 20 000 000 

     

*Included in the above amounts is a R20m deposit held with Rand Merchant Bank as collateral on the interest rate swap 

agreement maturing on 12 March 2023 and accordingly classified as Non-Current.  

**Capital totalling R175,9m is further committed to approved projects at 31 March 2016. Capital available for debt funding at 31 

March 2016 amounts to R121,3m. 

***Capital to be utilised and committed as Government contribution in En-commandite partnership within Private Equity 

structure. 

 

The Trust invests surplus funds with financial institutions that are rated in accordance with Fitch rating of BBB with the exception 

of Ithala limited which is not independently rated, however has been approved as an authorised institution by the Trustee. The 

interest earned on surplus funds approximated on average 7.03% (2015:6.67%) during the year. 

 

   2016 2015 

  Notes R R 

Maturity analysis     

Current Accounts   2 070 958 3 853 577 

Call Accounts   11 819 993 21 088 652 

1-30 Days   189 470 842 355 850 005 

1-6 Months   357 191 796 193 991 807 

Over 5 Years   20 145 511 20 000 000 

   580 699 100 594 784 041 

 

7 Trade and other receivables 
       2016 2015 

     Notes         R R 

Trade receivables  - 36 987 

Sundry debtors  1 024 446 926 637 

Prepayments  810 433 265 675 

Deposit  244 857 241 437 

VAT receivables  114 - 

Staff Debtors  50 006 95 215 

  2 129 856 1 565 951 

Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 60 days terms. The staff debtors are 

interest free, and the employees are subject to fringe benefits tax.  The staff debtor’s terms are normally between 1 and 60 

months. 
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   2016 2015 

  Notes R R 

Short-term deposit and maturity analysis     

Demand   1 269 304 1 470 735 

1-30 Days   1 531 7 698 

1-6 Months   7 771 31 824 

6-12 Months   819 621 6 188 

Over 5 Years   31 629 49 506 

   2 129 856 1 565 951 

     

 

8 Capital contribution and Reserves 

 
Initial capital   10 10 

Capital contribution – Debt capital   750 000 000 317 636 161 

Capital contribution – Equity capital   250 000 000  

Total capital contribution    1 000 000 010 317 636 171 

General reserve   - 104 319 277 

   1 000 000 010 421 955 448 

     

The total capital contribution represents capital provided by the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Government, and remains part of the 

Trust’s capital for the life span of the Trust. There are no repayment terms and this funding is interest fee. The balance has 

increased due to the increase in the amount disbursed to the projects and the release of Deferred Funds to Equity as a result of 

the unencumbering of the previous Debt Fund and the approval of the Evolution Strategy. 

 

In terms of the strategy, funds previously received for Equity from the Beneficiary (and held in a warehousing capacity outside of 

capital within the Debt Fund), was approved to be utilised for the Trusts mandate and revised product offerings was transferred 

to capital. 

 

As part of the implementation of the strategy, general reserve funding which was previously provided by the KwaZulu-Natal 

Provincial Government (relating to the settlement subsidy received for the repayment of a previous leader (INCA) on their exit 

from the Fund as well as benefits received as a result of the waiver of amounts payable on the acquisition of the net assets of the 

Fund Manager) was capitalised to be utilised for Project disbursements. Furthermore, the Trust sought to capitalise additional 

funds from retained earnings.  

 

9 Deferred Funds 
                                            2016 2015 

 Notes R R 

Deferred Funds – Fund I  - 44 863 839 

Deferred Funds – Fund II  - 402 919 821 

Total Deferred Funds  - 447 783 660 

    

The Deferred Funds comprised residual funds that were available for project drawdown. Prior to the unencumbering of the Trust, 

undisbursed funds were recorded as deferred funds that were available for future projects (debt financing). Further, funds relating 

to Fund II were ring fenced outside of the debt fund structure and recorded as deferred funds. 

 

The approval of the evolution strategy resulted in the release of deferred funds to capital of the Trust as noted above. 
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10 Finance lease liability 
                                            

Notes 

2016 2015 

  R R 

Total Finance lease liability  22 333 126 824 

Less: short term portion of finance lease liability  (16 007) (106 864) 

Long term portion of finance lease liability  6 326 19 960 

    

The split of the minimum lease payments due, future finance charges and present value of minimum lease payment due are 

detailed in note 21.2. 

 

11 Provisions 
                                            

Notes 

2016 2015 

  R R 

Provisions comprise of the following:    

Long service awards 11.1 241 481 313 729 

Audit fee provision 11.2 373 362 394 995 

Total provisions  614 843 708 724 

    

    

                                            

Notes 

2016 2015 

  R R 

    

Long term portion of provisions  108 912 277 972 

Short term portion of provisions  505 931 430 752 

Total provisions  614 843 708 724 

    

Provisions comprise of employee benefits that relate to long service award and provision for audit fees. The details relating to 

the long service award is detailed in note 11.1 and comprises short and long term portions, whereas the details of the provision 

for audit fees is detailed in note 11.2 and comprises only short term provisions. 

 

 

11.1 Long service awards 
The Trust operates an unfunded long service award (LSA) for qualifying employees. Under the award, the employees are entitled to a LSA 

for every five years of service completed, from five years to fifteen years of service inclusive. Only employees who were employed prior 

to 31 March 2012 are eligible for the Long Service Awards. 

 

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the long service obligation were carried out at 25 January 2016 by Mr Chanan 

Weiss, Fellow of the Faculty of Actuaries and the Actuarial Consulting.  The present value of the long service obligation, and the related 

current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.   
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Sensitivity analysis assumptions      

The assumptions which tend to have the greatest impact on the results are:    

(i) The discount rate relative to the salary inflation assumptions; and     

(ii) Assumed rates of withdrawals of employees from service.     

      

The liability at the Valuation Date was recalculated to show the effect of:      

(i) A 1% increase and decrease in the assumed general salary inflation rate; 

(ii) A 1% increase and decrease in the discount rate; and  

(iii) A 50% decrease in the assumed withdrawal rates from service.     

 

 

 

  2016 2015 

  R R 

Long term portion of Long Service award provision  108 912 277 972 

Short term portion of Long Service award provision  132 569 35 757 

Total Long Service award provision  241 481 313 729 

    

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows: 

Discount rate  8.74% 7.17% 

General salary inflation  7.15% 6.16% 

Net discount rate  1.48% 0.95% 

Average retirement age  63 63 

Amounts recognised in profit and loss in respect of the long service award: 

Current service cost  (56 474) 54 285 

Interest  21 246 28 118 

Actuarial gain  (1 263) (109 846) 

  (36 491) (27 443) 

    

The expense is included in the personnel expense which is classified as administrative expenses as per note 17. 

    

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the year were as follows: 

 

The amount included in the statement of financial position arising from KGFT’s 

obligation in respect of its long service award is as follows: 

   

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation  241 481 313 729 

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation  241 481 313 729 

    

Opening defined benefit obligation  313 729 385 475 

Current Service cost  142 795 54 285 

Interest                   21 246  28 118 

Effect on Curtailment    (199 269) - 

Expected Benefit Vesting   (35 757) (44 303) 

Actuarial gain    (1 263) (109 846) 

Closing defined benefit obligation    241 481 313 729 
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Sensitivity analysis on the unfunded accrued liability 

Assumption 

Change 

2016 2015 

Liability % change Liability % change 

Central assumptions  241 481  313 729  

 

General salary inflation 

+1% 246 310 +2% 324 234 +3% 

-1% 236 651 -2% 303 662 -3% 

 

Discount rate 

+1% 234 236 -3% 302 095 -4% 

-1% 248 725 +3% 326 130 +4% 

Withdrawal rates -50% 263 214 +9% 367 253 +17% 

 

Sensitivity analysis on the current-service and interest costs for the year ending 31 March 2016 

 

Assumption Change 

Current-

service cost 

Interest 

cost 

 

Total 

 

% change 

Central assumptions  142 800 21 200 164 000  

 

General salary inflation 

+1% 148 800 22 000 170 800 +4% 

-1% 137 000 20 500 157 500 -4% 

 

Discount rate 

+1% 136 400 23 300 159 700 -3% 

-1% 149 600 19 000 168 600 +3% 

Withdrawal rates -50% 172 000 25 100 197 100 +20% 

 

Sensitivity analysis on the current-service and interest costs for the year ending 31 March 2015 

 

Assumption Change 

Current-

service cost 

Interest 

cost 

 

Total 

 

% change 

Central assumptions  100 900 28 100 129 000  

 

General salary inflation 

+1% 106 100 29 400 135 500 +5% 

-1% 96 000 26 900 122 900 -5% 

 

Discount rate 

+1% 95 600 30 300 125 900 -2% 

-1% 106 700 25 700 132 400 +3% 

Withdrawal rates -50% 122 827 33 448 156 275 +21% 

 

11.2 Provision for external audit fees 
 

Provision comprises audit fees only. The movement in the provision is as follows: 

  2016 2015 

 Notes R R 

Provision comprises audit fees only. The movement in the provision is as 

follows: 

   

Balance as at 1 April  394 995 334 305 

Provisions raised during the year 17 457 932 482 777 

Provision utilised during the year  (479 565) (422 087) 

Balance as at 31 March  373 362 394 995 
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12 Loans and borrowings 
                          

Notes 

2016 2015 

  R R 

 

Total borrowings  - - 

Less: Short term portion of loans and borrowings  - - 

Long term borrowings  - - 

    

 

Movement in loans and borrowings: 

Balance as at 1 April  - 59 244 580 

Add: interest expense 15 - 3 020 316 

Less: Payments made (normal terms)  - (38 015 980) 

Less: Payments made (early settlement)  - (24 248 916) 

Balance as at 31 March  - - 

 

The structural changes have resulted in the exit of the lenders from the funding structure as at 31 March 2015, through an early 

cancellation of the lenders respective commitments and settlement of their current exposures.   

 

13 Trade and other payables 
    

    

Trade payables  1 304 058 192 638 

Trade accruals  1 242 946 321 860 

Committee fees payable  - 125 000 

Accrued leave pay  1 002 219 673 189 

Operating lease commitments  324 949 486 345 

  3 874 172 1 799 032 

    

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 60 day terms.  Leave pay accrual is based on the 

actual leave days due to employees and is calculated using the current remuneration packages. The timing of cash is dependent on the 

employee’s resignation, retirement or dismissal. 

 

14 Interest income 
                          

Notes 

2016 2015 

  R R 

Current account  86 862 238 078 

Call account  968 877 1 543 190 

Transfer from deferred funds  42 919 821 - 

Investment accounts  38 515 128 23 507 709 

Loans and advances  46 208 824 22 002 156 

Shareholders loan  15 387 - 

Loans and advances reversal of suspended interest  - 7 835 315 

  128 714 899 55 126 448 
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15 Interest expense 
 

Interest paid on interest rate swap 27 1 250 424 115 841 

Interest paid on borrowings 12 - 3 020 316 

  1 250 424 3 136 157 

 

16 Other income 
 

Commitment fee income  33 699 55 026 

Profit on sale of assets  2 799 1 878 

Prepayment Penalty  - 3 171 772 

Sundry income  23 060 134 533 

  59 558 3 363 209 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

17 Operating expenses 
  2016 2015 

 Notes R R 

The operational expenses include the following:    

Agency fees  - 614 692 

Audit fees and professional fees:    

  External audit fees 11.2 427 350 482 777 

       Current year provision  457 932 482 777 

       Prior year over provision  (30 582) - 

       Other services  - - 

  Internal audit fees  292 464 210 172 

Bank charges  56 713 43 934 

Commitment fees  - 1 937 007 

Committee fees  2 245 632 1 810 888 

  Trustees fees 18.1 1 526 386 1 194 418 

  Investment committee fees 18.2 244 624 257 277 

  Audit and Risk Committee fees 18.3 192 208 167 014 

  Human Resources and Remuneration – Committee Fees 18.4 282 414 192 179 

Depreciation of Equipment 2 649 657 562 196 

Amortisation of Intangible assets 3 431 821 280 486 

Personnel expenses  17 747 202 14 579 303 

  Executive Management Remuneration 18.5 7 829 526 4 798 460 

  Staff salaries and benefits  9 954 167 9 808 286 

  Long service – current cost 11.1 (56 474) 54 285 

  Long service – interest cost 11.1 21 246 28 118 

  Long service – actuarial gain 11.1 (1 263) (109 846) 

Legal fees  1 035 375 88 561 

Travel and accommodation  992 166 778 251 

Rent paid  981 893 946 908 

Recruitment  677 601 756 329 

Telecommunications  207 522 209 625 

Project technical appraisal and background checks  176 451 575 981 

Other advisory fees  1 439 000 721 783 

Marketing costs  559 449 1 988 975 

Insurance  173 640 159 253 

Finance charge on finance lease  7 611 18 265 

Breakage costs  - 107 958 

Secretariat Services  - 97 036 

Other expenses  1 641 797 1 024 553 

  29 743 344 27 994 932 
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18 Trustees and other committee members’ remuneration and executive remuneration 
 

18.1 Trustee’s fees 
  2016 2015 

  R R 

Outgoing committee    

    

Mr U Naicker**  - (62 342) 

  - (62 342) 

    

**Negative fees relate to prior year fee provision which was reversed in the 2015 financial year. 

 

Incoming committee    

Ms D Hlatshwayo (Chairman)  645 922 553 478 

Mr H Switala (Deputy Chairman)  294 236 232 267 

Ms P Langeni  140 478 119 791 

Mr IAS Vally  140 616 127 875 

Ms D Jay  152 776 119 309 

Ms Z Mbele*  151 358 95 906 

Mr R Kalaichelvan (Tendered resignation-resignation effective 03 June 2014)  - 8 134 

Mr MSA Badurally Adam (Chief Executive Officer)ᶺ  - - 

  1 526 386 1 256 760 

* The Trustee resigned on 31 March 2016    

ᶺ The Chief Executive Officer is appointed as a Trustee by virtue of 

appointment and does not receive remuneration for Trustee fees nor a 

retainer. In addition, Ms D Lerutla, Ms K Shabalala and Ms G Simelane (not 

members of the Board of Trustees) are compensated at Sub-Committee rates 

if they attend Board of Trustee meetings. This remuneration is included in 

other Sub-committee remuneration (refer notes 18.2 to 18.4) 

   

    

Total Trustee fees  1 526 386 1 194 418 

   

 

18.2 Investment Committee members’ fees 
  2016 2015 

 Note R R 

Outgoing committee    

Ms N Qangule**  - (16 881) 

  - (16 881) 

 

**Negative fees relate to prior year fee provision which was reversed in the 2015 financial year. 

    

Incoming committee    

Mr H Switala (Chairman)  68 106 51 651 

Ms P Langeni  25 326 36 009 

Mr C Henriksen – Member, SBSA Representative*  - 30 008 



   
 

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 116 

 
 

M H Sathekge – Member, SBSA Representative*  - 18 509 

Ms D Lerutla  50 653 89 464 

Ms Khethiwe Shabalala (appointed 1 June 2015)  50 585 - 

Mr IAS Vally  37 989 - 

Ms D Jay (appointed 17 April 2015  as an alternate)  12 663 - 

Mr M Manwadu – Member, DBSA Representative*  - 48 517 

  245 322 274 158 

    

Total Investment Committee fees  245 322 257 277 

 

* Committee members ceased to be members due to early settlement of lenders. 

 

18.3 Audit and Risk Committee members’ fees 
 

Incoming committee 

   

Mr IAS Vally (Chairman)  90 970 86 228 

Ms D Jay  50 585 48 012 

Ms Z Mbele (resignation effective 31 March 2016)  50 653 29 453 

Mr R Kalaichelvan (tendered resignation-resignation effective 03 June 2014)  - 3 321 

  192 208 167 014 

    

Total Audit and Risk Committee fees  192 208 167 014 

 

    

18.4 Human Resources and Remuneration Committee  

member fees 
    

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (HR Committee)    

Ms KPM Simelane (Chairman)  188 477 126 066 

Ms D Jay  48 606 32 345 

Mr IAS Vally  45 331 33 768 

Total HR Committee fees  282 414 192 179 
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18.5 Executive management remuneration 
  2016 2015 

Mr MSA Badurally Adam - Chief Executive Officer  R R 

Guaranteed Remuneration  2 541 354 2 264 002 

Performance Bonus Incentive*  776 626 - 

Other  72 045 51 019 

  3 390 025 2 315 021 

 

    

Ms SR Mpofu – Chief Financial Officer (Resigned 30 April 2014)    

Guaranteed Remuneration  - 112 663 

Performance Bonus Incentive*  - - 

Other  - - 

  - 112 663 

    

Mr I Abdoola – Chief Financial Officer (Appointed 7 April 2014)    

Guaranteed Remuneration  1 447 052 1 247 640 

Performance Bonus Incentive*  433 783 - 

Other  75 695 13 505 

  1 956 530 1 261 145 

    

Mr MAG Phungula – Legal, Risk and Compliance Officer (Appointed 1 July 2014 

- Resigned 31 May 2015) 

   

Guaranteed Remuneration  224 082 849 600 

Performance Bonus Incentive*  - - 

Other  672 363 1 698 

  896 445 851 298 

    

Mr AL Shabane – Chief Investment Officer (Appointed 1 February 2015)    

Guaranteed Remuneration  1 550 000 255 821 

Performance Bonus Incentive*  - - 

Other  36 526 2 512 

  1 586 526 258 333 

 

 

TOTAL  7 829 526 4 798 460 

 

 
*Performance Bonus Incentives payments relate to performance in the previous financial year and recorded in the year of approval. 

Performance bonuses paid in terms of a Board approved policy. In terms of the performance bonus policy, employees appointed after 

31 December of a financial year are not eligible for a bonus in that year. 
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19 Cash flows from operating activities 
  2016 2015 

 Notes R R 

Total comprehensive income  78 494 616 50 571 900 

Adjustment for non-cash items:    

Add:  Depreciation 2 649 657 562 196 

Add:  Amortisation 3 431 821 280 486 

Less:  Interest Income 14 (85 795 078) (55 126 448) 

Less:  Interest earned on deferred funds released to capital  14 (42 919 821) - 

Add:  Interest expense 15 1 250 424 3 136 157 

Add:  Long service award 11.1 (36 491) (27 443) 

Less:  Profit on sale of assets 16 (2 799) (1 878) 

Less:  Foreign exchange gain 16 - - 

Add:  Impairment provision 17 19 286 073 - 

Less:  Reversal of provision for impairment on loans and advances 5 - (22 313 332) 

Movements in current assets and liabilities    

Decrease in trade and other receivables  (563 905) 342 870 

Decrease in trade and other payables  2 075 140 (4 600 051) 

(Decrease) / Increase in provisions  (57 390) 16 387 

Cash outflow from operating activities  (27 187 753) (27 159 156) 

 

 

   

20 Lease commitments 
 

20.1 Operating lease commitments 
 

 The future minimum lease payments under the non-cancellable  

 operating lease are as follows: 

    

Due within next 12 months  730 879 645 169 

Due from 1 year to 5 years  315 383 1 006 689 

Total future cash flows  1 046 262 1 651 858 

 

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Trust for its office space and parking.  The lease term is 5 years and 

rentals increase with the agreed upon escalations as per the lease agreements.  The lease payments are subject to escalation of 

9% per annum.  No contingent rent is payable. 

 

20.2    Finance lease commitments 
 

It is Trust policy to lease certain property and equipment under finance leases.  The lease term relates to five (5) i-pad tablets.  The Trust 

has elected to account for the tablets two year contract agreement as a finance lease.  The carrying amount of the lease asset is R20,893.  

The contract agreement provides for 24 equal instalments amounting to R1,580.34 for all four devices with effect from 1 August 2014.  

Ownership of the tablets will transfer to the Trust at the end of the lease term. 
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The reconciliation between the total minimum lease payments and their present value: 

 

2016 Up to 1 

year 

1 year to 5 

years 

Total 

 R R R 

Minimum lease payments 16 007 6 326 22 333 

Finance cost - - - 

Present value 16 007                      6 326 22 333 

    

2015    

    

Minimum lease payments 114 510 20 096 134 606 

Finance cost (7 646) (136) (7 782) 

Present value 106 864 19 960 126 824 

 

 

21 Financial risk management 
 

 Introduction and overview 
 The Trust has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments: 

 Credit risk 

 Liquidity risk 

 Market risk 

 Operational risk 

 

This note presents information about the Trust’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Trust’s objectives, policies and 

processes for measuring and managing risk. 

 

Risk management framework 
The Board of Trustees has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Trust’s risk management framework.  

The Trust’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the entity, to set appropriate 

risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.  Risk management policies and systems are reviewed 

regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Trust’s activities. 

 

21.1 Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has 

entered into with the Trust, resulting in a financial loss to the Trust.  It arises principally from cash and cash equivalents and 

from loans and advances made.  For risk management reporting purposes the Trust considers and consolidates all elements of 

credit risk exposure such as individual’s obligor default risk and sector risk. 

 

 

 

 

 



   
 

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 120 

 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

21.1.1 Management of credit risk 
The Trust’s policy over credit risk is to minimise its exposure to counterparties with perceived higher risk of default by dealing 

only with counterparties meeting the credit standards and by taking collateral for advances made.  The Trust, through its 

Investment Committee has designed comprehensive investment, credit and pricing policies that regulate the processes to be 

conducted in the evaluation of loans and advances as well as the terms and conditions under which loans and advances are 

made. 

 

The Trust assesses the credit rating of the loans and advances when it becomes party to the transaction and this is used to 

determine the credit margin which is included in the price that is charged to the loan.  The Trust’s credit risks are monitored 

on a semi-annual basis by the Board of Trustees. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents are required to be held with the financial institutions as approved by the Trustees. 

 

21.1.2 Exposure to credit risk 
The Trust’s maximum credit risk exposure (before collateral and other credit enhancements) at the statement of financial 

position date is represented by the respective carrying amounts of the financial assets in the statement of financial position.  

The risks on some of these exposures, such as loans and advances are mitigated by collateral held. 

 

The Trust holds tangible and intangible securities for the loans and advances.  This includes but is not limited to specific notarial 

bonds, cession of insurance policies, project accounts, shareholder agreements and other assets. 

 

21.1.3 Cash and cash equivalents 
The Trust’s cash and cash equivalents are held mainly with South Africa financial institution with a rating of F3 (ZAR), short term 

National Rating based on rating agency Fitch ratings. 

 

21.1.4 Concentration of credit risk 
The Investment Committee reviews credit concentration of debt securities held based on counterparties and industries. 

 

As at the reporting date, the Trust’s debt securities exposures were concentrated in the following industries: 

Transport and Logistics   14% 

Telecommunications   44% 

Manufacturing    42% 

 

21.1.5 Loans and advances 
The Trust enters into credit agreements that may result in credit loss in the event that the counterparty to the transaction is 

unable to fulfil its contractual obligation to the Trust.  The Trust minimises its credit risk by monitoring the counterpart 

creditworthiness in additions to this the counterparties are required to go through an approval process and provide collateral 

in order to qualify for a loan. 

 

21.1.6 Trade and other receivables 
The trade and other receivables as disclosed are not exposed to any credit risk and no amounts are overdue. 

 

21.1.7  Counterparty risk 
Credit risk also arises in the form of financial counterparty risk from the Trust’s cash and liquidity management activities.  In 

order to mitigate this risk, the Trust only deals with the financial institutions as approved by the Board of Trustees. 
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21.2 Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Trust will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from its financial liabilities that are 

settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, or that such obligations will have to be settled in a manner disadvantageous 

to the Trust. 

 

21.2.1 Management of liquidity risk 
The Trust’s policy and the Fund Manager’s approach to managing liquidity is to have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities, as 

and when due, without incurring undue losses or risking damage to the Trust’s reputation. 

 

The Trust’s liquidity risk is managed in accordance with policies and procedures in place whereby the Trust is required to 

maintain a debt service reserve in order to meet its obligation for repayments for loans and borrowing.  The Trustee’s overall 

liquidity risks are monitored on a regular basis by the Board of Trustees. 

 

A summary of the Trust’s liquidity profile as at 31 March 2016 is as follows: 

 
   

Notes 

 

On demand 1 to 30 days 

1 to 6 

months 

6 months to 

1 year 

From 1 to 5 

years After 5 years Total 

Financial assets         

Equity Investments 4 - - - - - 48 015 387 48 015 387 

Loans and advances 5 - - 38 942 656 1 776 497 211 256 354 210 125 720 462 101 227 

Trade receivable 7 1 269 304 1 531 7 771 819 621 31 629 - 2 129 856 

Cash and cash equivalents 6 13 890 951 189 470 842 357 191 796 - - 20 145 511 580 699 100 

         

Financial liabilities         

Trade and other payables 13 (3 874 172) - - - - - (3 874 172) 

Loans and borrowings 12 - - - - - - - 

Deferred funds 9 - - - - - - - 

Net liquidity excess  11 286 083 189 472 373 396 142 223 2 596 118 211 287 983 278 286 618 1 089 071 398 

         

Cumulative liquidity 

excess 

 

  11 286 083 200 758 456 596 900 679 599 496 797    810 784 780 1 089 071 398 1 089 071 398 
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A summary of the Trust’s liquidity profile as at 31 March 2016 was as follows: 

 

   

Notes 

 

On demand 

 

1 to 30 days 

1 to 6 

months 

6 months to 

1 year 

From 1 to 5 

years 

After 5 

years Total 

l 

Financial assets          

Loans and advances 5 - 885 633 5 260 240 11 171 788 88 774 998 257 324 302 363 416 961  

Trade receivable 7 1 470 735 7 698 31 824 6 188 49 506 -     1 565 950  

Cash and cash 

equivalents 

6 24 942 229 355 850 005 193 991 807 - - 20 000 000 594 784 

041 

 

          

Financial liabilities          

Trade and other payables 13 (1 799 032) - - - - -     (1 799 032)  

Loans and borrowings 12 - - -  -  -  - -  

Deferred funds 9 (447 783 660) - - - - - (447 783 660)  

Net liquidity excess  (423 169 728) 356 743 336 199 283 871 11 177 976 88 824 504 277 324 302  510 184 261  

          

Cumulative liquidity  (423 169 728) (66 426 392) 132 857 479 144 035 455 232 859 959 510 184 261  510 184 261  

          

          

The table shows the undiscounted cash flows of the Trust’s financial liabilities on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity.  The gross 

amounts include interest payable where appropriate.  The Trust’s expected cash flows on these instruments do not vary significantly from this analysis. 

 

21.3 Market risks 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest risk that will affect the Trust’s income or the value of its holdings of 

financial instruments.  The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, 

while optimising the return on risk. 

 

21.3.1 Management of market risks 
The Trust’s market risk is managed by the Trust in accordance with policies and procedures in place.  The Trust’s level of borrowing and 

consequently the debt service costs are closely monitored and controlled by the Trustees having regards to the prevailing and projected interest 

rates and the Trust’s capacity to service such debt from future earnings. 

 

21.3.2 Exposure to margin risk 
The Trust is exposed to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of its financial instruments will be affected by the impairment of financial 

assets. 

 

The internal procedures require the Trust to manage margin risk in accordance with policies and procedures in place.  The Trust has designed 

a Risk Reward profile to assist the Trust in managing the margin risk. 
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At the reporting date, the profile of the Trust’s margin was: 

 

2016  Less than From 1 to Greater than  

Rands Notes 1 year 5 years 5 years Total 

      

Assets      

Cash and cash equivalents 6 560 553 590 - 20 145 510 580 699 100 

Loans and advances 5 40 719 153 211 256 354 210 125 720 462 101 227 

Total assets  601 272 743 211 256 354 230 271 230 1 042 800 327 

      

      

Liabilities      

Loans and borrowings 12 - - - - 

Total liabilities  - - - - 

      

Total margin exposure gap  608 805 416 203 723 681 230 271 230 1 042 800 327 

 

 

     

2015      

Rands      

      

Assets      

Cash and cash equivalents 6 574 784 041 - 20 000 000 594 784 041 

Loans and advances 5 17 317 661 88 774 998 257 324 302 363 416 961 

Total assets  592 101 702 88 774 998 277 324 302 958 201 002 

      

Liabilities      

Loans and borrowings 12 - - - - 

Total liabilities  - - - - 

      

Total margin exposure gap  592 101 702 88 774 998 277 324 302 958 201 002 

      

 

21.4 Operational risks 
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes, technology and 

infrastructure supporting the Trust’s operations either internally within the Trust or externally at the Trust’s service providers, and from 

external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally 

accepted standards of investment management behaviour.  Operational risks arise from all the Trust’s activities. 

 

The Trust’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its reputation with achieving 

its investment objective of generating returns to investors.  The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of 

controls over operational risk rests with the Board of Trustees. 
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This responsibility is supported by the development of overall standards for the management of operational risk, which encompasses 

the controls and processes at the service providers and the establishment of service levels with the service providers, in the following 

areas: 

 

 requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and 

 requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions 

 compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements 

 documentation of controls and procedures 

 requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to address the 

risks identified  

 contingency plans 

 ethical and business standards 

 risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective 

 

The Trustee’s assessment over the adequacy of the controls and processes in place with respect to operational risks is carried out via 

regular discussions and a review of the audited annual financial statements, reports on internal controls and budgets, where available. 

 

21.5 Capital management 
The capital contribution represents capital provided from the KwaZulu-Natal Department of Economic Development, Tourism and 

Environmental Affairs which is made in terms of the Capital Contribution Agreement.  In Terms of the  evolution strategy, funds previously 

received for Equity from the Beneficiary (and held in a warehousing capacity outside of capital within the Debt Fund), was approved to 

be utilised for the Trusts mandate and revised product offerings was transferred to capital. There are not repayment terms and this 

funding is interest free. 

 

The debt service reserve was provided by the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Government.  In terms of the Trust Deed and the Senior and 

Mezzanine Term Facility Agreement, the Trust is required to maintain a debt service reserve that is equal to the amount payable to the 

lenders within the next six months.  This amount was however released through the early prepayment and settlement of lenders which 

resulted in a cancellation of the facility agreements with lenders. 

 

The general reserve was provided by the Kwa-Zulu Natal Provincial Government.  Amounts received related to the settlement subsidy 

received for the repayment of a previous lender (INCA) on their exit from the fund as well as benefits received as a result of the waiver 

of amounts payable on the acquisition of the net assets of the Fund Management Company.  As part of the implementation of the 

evolution strategy, general reserve funding was capitalised during the 2016 financial year to be utilised for Project disbursements. 
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22 Financial assets and liabilities 
 

Accounting classifications and fair values 
The table below provides reconciliation of the line items in the Trust’s statement of financial position to the categories of financial 

instruments. 

 

2016 

Rands 

Notes Financial Assets Other financial 

liabilities 

Total carrying 

amount 

Equity Investments 4 48 015 387 - 48 015 387 

Loans and advances 5 462 101 227 - 462 101 227 

Cash and cash equivalents 6 580 699 100 - 580 699 100 

Trade and other receivables 7 2 129 856 - 2 129 856 

Deferred funds 9 - - - 

Loans and borrowings 12 - - - 

Trade and other payables 13 - (3 874 172) (3 874 172) 

  1 092 945 570 (3 874 172) 1 089 071 398 

     

2015 

Rands 

    

Loans and advances 5 363 416 961 - 363 416 961 

Cash and cash equivalents 6 594 784 041 - 594 784 041 

Trade and other receivables 7 1 565 951 - 1 565 961 

Deferred funds 9 - (447 783 660) (447 783 660) 

Loans and borrowing 12 - - - 

Trade and other payables 13 - (1 799 032) (1 799 032) 

  959 766 953 (449 582 692) 510 184 261 

Financial assets and liabilities carrying amounts approximates their 

fair values. 

    

 

 

23 Commitments 
 2016 2015 

 R R 

Authorised capital expenditure   

 Contract for and authorised - - 

 Not yet contracted for but authorised  - - 

 - - 

 

24 Income tax 
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No provision has been made for taxation for the Trust as the entity is considered a vested entity of the Department of Economic 

Development & Tourism (as the ultimate beneficiary of the Trust is the KwaZulu-Natal Government) which is exempt from income tax in 

terms of Section 10(1)(a) of the Income Tax Act no 58 of 1962 (‘the Act’). 
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25 Related parties 
The KGFT is one of twelve (12) entities within the Department of Economic Development, Tourism & Environmental Affairs (EDTEA). As 

such these entities and other entities within the sphere of Government are considered to be related parties. The Trust enters into 

transactions with related parties in its normal course of business. 

 

The following are the Trust’s key related parties and the transactions entered into during the financial year: 

 

25.1 Department of Economic Development, Tourism & Environmental Affairs 
The Department of Economic Development, Tourism & Environmental Affairs (EDTEA) is the ultimate beneficiary of the Trust.  

  

During the 2016 financial year, a total amount of R95m was provided by the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Government and this was 2015/16 

budget allocation received in July 2015. The amounts received related to the annual fund allocation. 

 

During the 2015 financial year, a total amount of R140m was provided by the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Government. The amounts 

received related to the annual budget equity fund allocation. The 2013/2014 budget allocation of R85m was received in April 2014 and 

the 2014/2015 budget allocation of R55m was received in March 2015. 

 

25.2 Ithala SOC Ltd 
Ithala SOC Limited, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ithala and operates as a retail bank operating under an exemption licence with the 

South African Reserve Bank. Funds held on fixed deposit as at 31 March 2016 amounted to R48 007 275 (2015: R57 925 503) including 

accrued interest. Total interest earned during the year totalled R2 473 735 (2015:R2 788 850). Ithala SOC Limited further provided 

intermediary insurance advisory services for which insurance payments totalling R310 951 (2015:R166 902) were paid during the year. 

 

25.3 Key management personnel    
The total Trustee’s fees incurred for the year was R1,526,386 (2015 R1,194,418).  The listing of the trustees is shown under note number 

18.1.        

 

The total Investment committee’s fees incurred for the year was R244,624 (2015: R257,277). The listing of the investment committee 

fees is shown under note number 18.2. 

       

The total Audit and Risk Committee’s fees incurred for the year was R192,208 (2015: R167,014). The listing of the Audit and Risk 

committee fees is shown under note number 18.3. 

 

The total HR Committee’s fees incurred for the year was R282,414 (2015: R192,179).  The listing of the HR committee fees is shown under 

note number 18.4. 

 

The Executive management remuneration for the year was R7,829,526 (2015: R4,798,460). The listing of the executive management 

remuneration is shown under note number 18.5. 

 

25.4 KwaDukuza Private Hospital (Pty) Ltd 
The KGFT holds 26% of the shareholding in KwaDukuza Private Hospital (Pty) Ltd. Transactions with this entity is disclosed in note 4 to 

the financial statements. 
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